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Sen Dever asked how the sum of 1 50 mi l lion dollars was arrived at and if he thought it 
would address the need adequately in the oil patch . 

Mr. Lambert replied that it's a starting point. He said they are 20 years beh ind being 
rei mbursed and it wi l l  go very quickly. It's a small amount considering where they are at 
from a health care infrastructure standpoint in playing catch up. 

Ron Ness, North Dakota Petroleum Counci l ,  testified in strong support. 

Andy Peterson, Greater NO Chamber, spoke in support. 

There was no further testimony. 

The hearing on SB 2 1 87 was closed. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution :  

Relating to a Bank of North Dakota medical faci l ity infrastructure loan program. 

Minutes: 

Chairman J .  Lee opened discussion on SB 2 1 87.  

Sen.  Anderson moved a Do Pass and rerefer to Appropriations. 

Sen.  Larsen seconded the motion. 

D iscussion followed that this bi l l  does not spend 1 50 mi l lion dollars. It is being taken off the 
table out of the surplus and wil l  be restored some time in the future. 

Roll call vote 5-0-0. Carrier is Sen.  Anderson. 
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B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 



Name: Robert  A. Humann 

Agency: Bank of North Dakota 

Telephone: 328.5703 

Date Prepared: 0 1 /24/201 3  















2013 SENATE APPROPRIATIONS 

SB 2187 



201 3 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

Harvest Room, State Capitol 

S B  21 87 
January 31 , 201 3  

Job# 1 8075 

D Conference Committee 

A bi l l  relating to the medical faci lity infrastructure loan program 

Minutes: Testimony attached # 1-3 

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on SB 2 1 87 .  All committee members were 
present except Senator Robinson. 

Leg islative Council - Adam Mathiak 
OMB - Joe Morrissette 

Chairman Holmberg: S B  2 1 87 is a re-referral from the Human Services committee. 

Senator J udy Lee, District 13, West Fargo 
Chairman, Senate Human Services Committee and Bil l  Sponsor 

One member from her committee said he l ikes this bil l because the money gets paid back. 
There are several medical faci l ities in this state that are struggl ing.  They need to expand 
their facil ities and it's hard to get access to capital .  This would set up a medical facil ity loan 
infrastructure loan fund. It could only lend 75% of the value -that wou ld be the maximum, 
or $20M ,  whichever is less. I t  would have an interest rate of 1% amortized over 25 years 
and it's for not for profit organizations. We've heard from many faci l ities that not only need 
expanding space, but in some cases, may have issues with asbestos or something else 
and they are j ust not able to find the dollars to do what has to be done in order to upgrade 
their faci lity. We have to have these critical access hospitals a lthough it doesn't say that it's 
l imited to critical access. 

Jennifer Clark, Legislative Council 
Testimony attached# 1 (Grindberg amendment 1 3.0505.0200 1 )  
I 'm here, because when Senator Grindberg brought h is amendments u p ,  I reviewed the bi l l  
and it came to my attention that we engrossed that over in  Senator Lee's committee. We 
m ade a m istake so I 'm using h is amendments as a veh icle to fix that. If you don't move 
forward on h is amendments, I would encourage you or I could draft you a set that wou ld do 
the fix. I don't need to address Senator Grindberg's changes if I could tel l  you the 
housekeeping I 'm doing on this. (Chairman Holmberg said to proceed.) 
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The nature of the hiccup that happened here is that section one and section two of this bill 
are both the same section of century code. Section one is creating it today. Section two is 
amending it in the future. The nuance of that means that if you make any changes in 
section one, you a lso need to make them in section two. We didn't do that. We're doing it 
here: 
The first 1 ,2,3 entries are the substantive one. Everything on pages three through five is 
housekeeping. If you want to look and see what Senator Grindberg's amendment would 
look like all put together, that new bill subsection three (down on the 2"d half) - that's what 
his section would look like a l l  put together because we have to incorporate that into section 
two. 

Senator Warner asked to explain page 2 -line 7 which has the phrase "prospective 
payment system hospitals" because he didn't remember seeing that phrase before. 

Jenn ifer Clark: I can't tel l  exactly what that means in the world of hospital billing .  

Chairman Holmberg:  The committee is  understanding why this particular set of 
amendments is before us. 

(5:44) John Vastag, Executive Director, Health Policy Consortium (Lobbyist# 94) 
Testified in favor of SB 2187 
Testimony attached# 2 
Testimony attached # 3 -  the Limits 8-23-12 

Senator Warner: PPS - Prospective Payment Hospitals - they are paid on a different 
payment system.  I n  essence, they are the six big hospitals in  the state: Trinity, St. A's, 
Altru , etc. 

(12:52) V.Chairman Bowman: How many people go into hospitals in an emergency 
situation and how many don't pay, putting hospitals in a tremendous financial crisis? 

John Vastag: Yes, we discussed that. In the study (attachment #3) you wil l  find a section 
on bad debt. . 

Senator Kilzer: H ow in the world do you think you'l l be able to pay back this loan? The 
critical access hospitals were here last session and received a considerable amount of an 
outright grant because we were told that quite a few of them wou ld be going under. That 
was largely the fau lt of Medicare that they were going u nder. I don't see any improvement 
at al l  about Medicare reimbursement, particularly to critical access hospitals. On the PPS 
side, I don't see anything bright in the future there either. 
ObamaCare relied on $7168 cut in Medicare reimbursement for medical providers and that 
has not been lessened. A further question - How can you repay this? In a few decades 
from now, wil l  you be asking forgiveness of this loan? 

John Vastag: No, I don't think we'll be back in 20 years asking forgiveness for the loan. 
One of the criteria to accept the loan is that they have to present a very solid business p lan. 
Otherwise it would not get approved . They would have to have a repayment structure in 
that business p lan. 
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( 1 6:09) Senator Warner: Receiving trauma patients in oi l  producing counties - would that 
include a l l  six of the PPS's? 

John Vastag: Yes, because al l  six currently receive trauma patients from out west. 

Senator Warner: And is this level three? Answer: Level two. 

Senator Warner: Most of the questions refer to trauma - are there l imitations within the 
loan program which l imits them to construction of trauma related facil ities? Could you build 
a cancer treatment center with money from this? 

John Vastag: The funds could be used to bui ld any infrastructure. The majority would go 
to bui ld primary care access because that's the real issue out there. The problem is two
fold - one, we have primary care access of new clinics so more patients can go to the 
clin ics instead of the ERs, and two, to enhance the emergency room trauma services 
departments within  existing facilities. 

Senator Warner: The l imiter to receiving trauma patients refers only to the PPS 
hospitals? Answer: Yes. 

( 1 8:00) Senator Carlisle: We have some large capitalization banks in this state, why 
wou ld n't you go to them? You said they have to have a good business plan. 

John Vastag: Even though the facil ity may have a sound business plan, with the current 
reimbursement systems as they are,  they could get a loan, but it would be at a much h igher 
percentage. This would make it very difficult for them to carry this out. The ideal situation 
is by accessing a portion of what they need at a lower interest rate, they will be able to 
access more capital for that project. The purpose of the low interest loan is that it would 
help them get over the bridge. 

John Vastag stated that Ron Ness from NO Petroleum Council strongly supports this bi l l  
a lso. 

Bil l  Shalhoob - GNDC Greater NO Chamber (Lobbyist #113) 
Testified in favor of S B  2 1 87 
No written testimony. 
We a lso support this bil l and think it wou ld be a good step that cou ld be taken that would 
help with some of the critical care problems that exist in the state. We're a lso supporting 
the study of that because it looks l ike we're headed down a road and we're wondering 
where the end game is a lso in terms of repayment. That's why we really need to look at 
these issues. The 1 %  loan is probably a quarter of what of that percentage you'd pay in the 
open market today - even for bonding which I think is around 4-4.5% for items that are not 
covered by property tax and the g uaranteed revenue stream from it. We would u rge 
strong consideration of this as a way to help us d ig out from u nderneath a problem we 
seem to have developed . 

Senator Warner: (asked question of Karlene F ine) The bank is not going to make any 
money on this loan, but normally, it would take more than 1 %  to actual ly do the paperwork -
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the mechanical aspects of handling a loan for 25 years. I n  your opinion , is the 1 %  
adequate s o  that the bank doesn't actual ly show a loss i n  its operations by handling loans 
of this nature? 

Karlene Fine: Referred the question to Bob Humann from the Bank of NO who was here .  
There had been d iscussion about some amendments on the b i l l  to cover administrative 
fees. 

Chairman Holmberg in testimony, the discussion was that the sponsors had worked with 
significant input from OMB and the staff of BND. Does OMB support the bi l l? Joe 
Morrissette said Pam is in the room and wil l  answer. 

Bob H umann: Sr. VP of Lending for Bank of NO -
We d id a fiscal note on this and how we proposed this to the Senate Veteran's Affairs 

Committee is that, basically, if it's a one percent interest rate, we'd end up taking half of it 
and the other half would go into the fund. We feel that we can administer the loans for just 
the half percent and cover our costs with our existing staff and existing systems. If we had 
to add new staff, it would be a d ifferent story. These are going to be some pretty large 
loans. We d id propose some amendments to the previous committee that there would be 
an administrative fee for the Bank of NO for this fund and there would also be an annua l  
audit on this fund. Those were the two changes we proposed and they were both adopted. 

Pam Sharp: OMB - OMBs involvement in this is that we were part of the committee that 
M r. Vastag mentioned. We gave them some history on how other revolving loans were 
structured and how they m ight structure a revolving loan fund. We helped them get in  
contact with the Bank of  NO and gave them some direction on how they could put the bi l l  
together. I'm neutral on the bi l l. It was not incl uded in the governor's budget. The time l ine 
for this was at tai l  end of the governor's budget so it was not even something we were 
considering at the time. 

(25:50) Senator Carl isle: (question for M r. Vastag) Sanford is already committed out of 
Dickinson for about $20M? and that includes their financing package? Answer: Yes. 

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on S B  21 87. 
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A bi l l  relating to the medical facility infrastructure loan program 

Minutes: 

Legislative Council - Sheila M. Sandness 
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 Testimony attached # 1 

Senator Kilzer opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2030. Senator Grindberg and 
Senator Mathern were present. 

Senator Kilzer said this is a stand-alone bill that requests loan of $150M for hospitals. 
Start by asking Senator Grindberg about his proposed amendments 13.0505.02001 -
attachment # 1 .  

Senator Mathern wondered how this fit i n  with the statewide plan and any connection with 
SB 2004 with the Department of Health. 

John Vastag - Health Policy Consortium - He represents Trinity, Altru and Sanford 
Health systems. This bill came out of the oil impact study done by the Health Policy 
Consortiu m  as an independent study. The goal was to look at the impact of health care 
within oil producing counties. We came back last fall with three recommendations and this 
was one of the recommendations. A large n umber of facilities out there have done a great 
job of expanding hours and trying to create more access, the reality of the fact is that we 
can't begin to keep up with the demand. We're seeing a lot of folks end u p  in ER that don't 
really need to be in ER. What the intent of this low interest loan would be to allow those 
facilities to access the needed capital to create some infrastructure and add some services 
to the facilities. They could go to their local banks to get it, but it would be a m uch higher 
rate and would be a program that would not be sustainable for them. This low interest loan 
program would be the same as the one currently modeled for IT. That is a $5M low interest 
loan through B ND that started in 2009. You renewed it last year and it's going very wel l  
with folks paying it  back very timely. We need to create some more access at the primary 
care level .  
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Senator Mathern: How does this fit in with statewide health care p lanning? How does this 
proposal fit in with sustainability and general planning for the state of NO in health care 
facilities? 

Discussion on how the bil l was formed and the makeup of the policy consortium. 

Discussed Senator Grindberg's bil l  SB 2169 

Senator Kilzer asked about 75-25 or 90-10. 

John Vastag: The loan would be the lesser of $20M or 75% of the project with a 25 year 
payback. You cou ld loan no more than 75% of the project or $20M cap. If Dan at Watford 
City wants to build $50M hospita l ,  he wouldn't be able to get $50M, he'd get $20M cap. 
Another example, in the bill you wil l  see that it is designed for the critical access hospitals 
and the P PS hospitals that take trauma patients which in essence would be al l  six because 
they are a l l  taking trauma patients in the west now. Mayvil le is a critical access would not 
technical ly be eligible. 

Senator Grinberg: Bob H umann -why can't you make a loan now? 

Bob Humann, VP, Bank of NO: They want better terms. Discussed terms. 

Senator Grinberg :  We have advisory board for the legacy fund . There's no reason B ND 
borrow $200M out from Legacy fund in a low risk portfolio, pay the Legacy Fund at 1% and 
turn around and assess a loan program to the hospitals for 2%. 

Discussed loans, financing of health care, Medicare population , reimbursement, finding 
workers. 

Senator Kilzer was concerned that hospitals would be able to cost shift to third party 
payers m uch longer. Who's stuck if the whole thing goes under? Answer - the state. 

Senator Kilzer wanted to know why the study focused on hospitals instead of clinics. If 
patients are going to avoid the ER, why not build up clinics? You didn't talk about that too 
m uch in the report, the financing or bad debt. 

John Vastag: This bil l  is inclusive for clinics too. 

Craig Lambrecht, MD, President of Sanford - Answered questions on the ability of larger 
hospitals in the state to absorb large debt. He said they have to ask themselves if this is 
humanitarian aid or is it development aid. You'll find that some of the smaller hospitals are 
going to have a hard time meeting eligibility requirements because they have problems with 
workers, turnover, and older facilities. If you finance Watford because they're not making 
it, and then CHI  moves in, what happens to that market share when the proforma looks like 
they might make it if we give them $20M for a hospital? 
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Talked about the smaller and larger hospitals getting loans and taking on risk, 
reimbursement from the federal government, insurance companies. Sanford is at risk for 
losing $1OOM. A lot of things happen when you have to face $1OOM cuts. Sanford has no 
i ntention of borrowing on program. This is more l ike impending doom for the smaller 
facilities because they will not get access to capital. He came from Wishek and the days of 
having a hospital ,  a clinic, a nursing home and having all the providers in the workforce 
aren't reality, but it's a difficult d iscussion to have because folks want everything now and 
local .  

Senator Kilzer thanked him. 

Craig Lambrecht added that every comm unity is going to have to have skin in  the game. 
If you're looking for investment from the state, for CHI ,  for Sanford, there has to be skin in 
the game. Otherwise there is a glide path . We've got financing and we can check out. 
That's the worst case scenario. You bui ld it, you can't support it, you can't sustain it, and 
who's got responsibil ity. The care we deliver has to change inpatient/outpatient. 

They wil l  meet again. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi ll/resolu ton :  

A bill relating to the medical facility infrastructure loan program 

Minutes: 

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak 
O M B  - Pam Sharp 

Senator Kilzer opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2187. Senator Grindberg and 
Senator Mathern were present. 

Senator Mathern - I was wondering if we should have some sort of reporting requirement. I 
am supportive of the loan fund. I'm disappointed that the Health Council hasn't been here to 
say this fits into a p lan. If that's not the case maybe we should p ut some language in this 
bil l  to make sure there is at least that kind of communication. 

Senator Grindberg - My sense is that there are two or three other bills that have revolving 
loans with cities for $200 million and I 'm a sponsor of a bill for $150 million revolving loan 
fund for water projects. There is $150 million here. I think it's important that we keep this bill 
alive but I 'm not comfortab le with $150 million yet knowing at the end of the session we are 
going to put the final pieces of the puzzle together. I was g lad to hear Craig from Sanford 
said they don't plan to use this. 

Senator Kilzer - We certain ly have noticed that the state health council has not been here .  
We haven't heard from them. There hasn't been that much interest on the hospital side of 
it. I would have a question of Legislative Council about the ability of health facilities, both 
clinics and hospitals to access some of these other funds that are supposed to be helping 
critical needs. Are there things in the governor's budget? 

Pam Sharp, OMS - There aren't any, there's not anything else in the governor's budget 
that add resses this need. Probably what you are referring to is the oil impact fund and 
could they go to the oil impact fund but I don't believe, they would have to; it's g ot to be a 
political subdivision that goes to the oil impact fund. 
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Senator Kilzer - It would have to be county, a city, or park district, etc. I 've expressed 
myself before about repayment of this debt. How m uch does critical access want this time? 

Jerry Jurena, North Dakota Hospital Association, (Lobbyist # 120) - It depends on the 
facility. I have 2 administrators here from the west. They are looking at a project to rebuild 
their hospital ,  roughly $50 million. Dickinson hospital which is already in progress and there 
hospital is roughly about $100 million. We have a number of other facilities that are looking 
at rem odeling their ER and facilities and these are anywhere from $10-20 million. We 
polled the 12 hospitals west of highway 83 we found that there was a need of about $165 
million for either ful l  replacement or partial remodeling of their ER's. 

Senator Mathern - Is there someone from health council here? 

Jerry Jurena - I am.  

Senator Mathern - Do they have a position on this? 

Jerry Jurena - It has not been brought before the council. 

Senator Mathern - Why wouldn't this be brought before the health council? 

Jerry Jurena - We take a look at some of the things that are going on in the west, the rise 
of chlamydia. Some of the health issues out there but we do not get in to the infrastructure 
part of operations. 

Senator Mathern - Does anybody look at infrastructure? 

Jerry Jurena - Not at the hospitals, no sir. 

Senator Grindberg - The State Chamber is doing a study. 

Senator Mathern - I 'd be wil ling to work on an amendment. 

Pam Sharp - There was a committee that came with this concept. They supported it, but 
were just a working g roup, no formal committee. OMS with several other agencies was 
involved . (9:10) It was a working group to see what to do with health issues in the western 
part of the state. 

Senator Kilzer - I 'm not real enthused with this bil l  at $150 million.  I asked the question to 
E ric Hard meyer about who is on the hook. I don't see how it's going to be repaid. There is 2 
big items; the biggest of al l  is the Obama care and the $716 billion of Medicare cuts that 
are coming . The second thing is the bad debt that these hospitals are getting now and they 
are asking for money at the present time. So I don't see how they are going to get o ut of the 
red . This will end up being an unfunded liability to the state of $150 million. We already 
have wel l  over a billion dollars of unfunded liability in the various pension p lans and maybe 
some other things we don't know about. As a free standing bill I 'm not enthused about 
giving it a do pass. I would m uch rather go a long with Senator Grindberg in keeping it a live 
for the p resent time and then somewhere a long the line put it in to the Health Department 
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bill or something. This is really Industrial Commission the way it sounds. Both of those 
entities should have a general idea of what would be feasible. I 'm disappointed if this need 
isn't addressed in any of the g overnor's suggestions. Obviously he either rejected it in his 
b udget or else d idn't think of it or something . (11 :54) 

Pam Sharp - The meeting I went to was at the very end of when we had already pretty 
m uch finalized the budget so it wasn't anything that was ever brought to the governor's 
office as a potential thing to include in the budget. 

Senator Kilzer - I 'm not wil ling to put a do pass on it and bring it to the committee. 

Senator Grindberg - I 'm not going to vote for $150 million. I would be comfortable with 
keeping this a live at a $10 million figu re for discussion purposes but there are too many 
variable yet. I agree wholeheartedly about ability to pay. 

Jerry Jurena- Wou ld it be permissible to put a hold on it and give the committee time to 
put amendments on it so it wouldn't be an unfunded liability? That it is targeted strictly to 
facilities that are now operating and struggling in the west? We could work with the Bank of 
North Dakota we could bring some people in and restructure it a little differently. 

Senator Kilzer - I 'm willing to listen to that. There are prime sponsors o n  here that you 
could work with and present it to us next week. 

Senator Mathern - I wou ld hope with the sentiment expressed , the amendments coming 
back and maybe some discussion between now and next Wednesday or whenever we 
meet we can have a bil l that we can bring to committee. 

Senator Kilzer- How m uch further do we want to put in specifics? You mentioned a figu re 
of $10 million .  

Senator Grind berg - It's a number off the top of  my head to keep the bill alive. 

Senator Mathern - I'd like to keep the entire amount but have some conditions that are 
comfortable with the committee. 

Senator Grindberg - We are going to get to day 77 and there's only going to be so m uch 
m oney left. 

Pam S harp - The governor proposed in $200 million for school construction revolving. I 
think we had projected right around $700 million at the end of this biennium in that fund that 
would be available to appropriate. 

Senator Mathern - I think that would be part of the wording of that amendment you just 
talked about. That it relates to those other conditions. 

Senator Grindberg - There is a lot more thought process that has to go in to this. Do we 
want to spend the Improvement Fund? I would advocate no. What is projected when we 
come back in 2 years? 
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Senator Kilzer - I 'm wil ling to go a long with Senator Grindberg to keep it alive. My other 
a lternative is to recommend a do not pass on the bill. We need to be in comm unication with 
our  leadership and the governor's office about this. 

Senator Kilzer - We wil l  meet with more materials next Wednesday. 

Senator Kilzer closed the hearing on SB 2187. 



201 3 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2187 
February 13, 2013 

Job# 18889 

D Conference Committee 

 Committee Clerk Signature  
Explanation or reason for    
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Senator Kilzer opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2030. Senator G rindberg and 
Senator Mathern were present. 

Senator Kilzer- Any new comments from committee members? 

Senator Mathern - I hope we have some new amendments to look at. Senator Judy Lee 
has some amendments? 

Senator Kilzer - I expressed my concerns about 2 things, both related to the ability of the 
medical facilities to ever pay back this loan. The number one thing is bad debt, and the 
number two thing is the Obama care reducing Medicare by $716 billion in order to finance 
the affordability act or whatever. Most of us recognize that hospitals do have a problem and 
it isn't going to g o  away and there is an acute phase to the problem. Committee members 
would like to keep the bill alive. What I would propose is an amendment that would change 
the $150 million to $12 million and keep it at 75% loan and 25% down payment. The 
interest payments are as they are in the original bil l  and also to have a maximu m  amount 
for one institution set at $3 million or I'd be willing to let that be $4 million but with a total of 
$12 million there would be 3 or 4 facilities could use the money. 

Senator G ri nberg - I wil l  support your amendment, but there are too many m oving parts. 

Senator Mathern - Can Senator Lee make comments or suggestions she may have? 

Senator J udy Lee, District 13 - I don't have any sterling ideas but what I wou ld like to 
suggest is that it's very important to keep this bill a live. There is a critical need for this 
funding. The serious request that was made to us by hospital CEO's was their access to 
capital is so challenging. Quite frankly the $12 million won't even work for one facility in 
m ost cases, but if it's a placeholder so Appropriations can see where this fits in , that would 
be okay. There is a payback to this. We spent a fair amount of time in our committee talking 
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about this. We real ly felt it was very important part of being able to have access to h igh 
qual ity 2 1 st century health care around the area. (6:06) 

Senator Kilzer - Do you have an amendment? 

Senator J udy Lee - I do not; I didn't know I was supposed to. 

Senator Grinberg - Just have Council draft it. 

Senator J. Lee - We had one that we added that included to request the Bank of North 
Dakota for the cost of administration and audit to be covered but aside from that, just a 
technical amendment real ly. 

Senator Kilzer - I 'm sure in the end we al l  agree to keep the bi l l  a live. This wi l l  be paired 
up in  conference committee with the c�itical access hospital b i l l .  

Senator Mathern - I real ly do believe the need is so m uch greater now. I u nderstand the 
concept of keeping the bi l l  a l ive but there is also a concept of making sure that we send it 
over to the H ouse with negotiating room. I don't see the House m oving ahead with a $150 
m il l ion b i l l. With this small amount of money, they might just approve it. We need to be 
looking at a negotiating position. 

Senator Grinberg - What needs to happen is d iscussion at leadership levels in both the 
House and Senate. (9:54) We need sustainable balance. 

Senator Grinberg moved the amendment. 

Senator Kilzer closed the hearing on SB 2 1 87. 
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A bi l l  relating to the medical facil ity infrastructure loan program. 

Minutes: 

Legislative Counci l - Becky J. Keller 
O M B - Laney Herauf 

Testimony attached # 1-2 

Senator Kilzer opened the subcommittee hearing on SB 2 1 87. Senator Grind berg and 
Senator Mathern were present. 

Senator Kilzer reviewed amendment 1 3.0505.02002. See attachment # 1 . 
I n  reference to page 2 l ine 1 0  "replace 20 with 3 and replace 75 with 25" he asked if they 
rea l ly intended to replace 75 with 25. 

Senator Mathern presented amendment 1 3.0505.02004 for the subcommittee to consider 
as another way of looking at it. See attachment #2. 
(01 :47) This amendment would make the amount of money available at the smaller critical 
access care hospital and clinic projects through a low interest loan. It would have better 
negotiating terms with the House on the bigger concerns with the oi l  patch and fields. 
These amendments were reviewed with the hospital association representatives .  

Senator Kilzer Have you looked at the other b i l l  in  the House regard ing critical access 
hospitals. 

Senator Mathern said he had not. 

Senator Kilzer What d id the hospital association say when you showed them you r  
proposed amendment? 

Senator Mathern They were supportive. There's not enough money to get into the big 
projects. A general concern was there are about 7-8 shovel ready projects ready right now 
that cou ld proceed . It would meet the need. 

Senator Mathern moved to adopt the amendment 13.0505.02004 
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Senator Grinberg seconded for d iscussion purposes. 

Senator Mathern pointed out a technical correction pertaining to the issue of oil producing. 
There was a lso clarification that it limits the loans to facilities that are designated as critical 
access hospitals or medical clinics. It takes out the larger hospitals and reduces the 
amount to $75M. It's sti l l  a loan program. 

Senator Mathern - yes Senator Grinberg - no Senator Kilzer - no 

Motion fai ls. 

Senator Grinberg said that Senator Mathern's amendment focused on where the need is. 
This is not the last that we'll hear of this bill. We have to have a strategy on the S I F F  fund. 
The time to get serious is after crossover. Whether this bil l goes to the house and gets 
defeated, we're going to be front and center. This wil l  be a priority, just how do we shake it 
out. 

Senator Kilzer moved Amendment 13.0505.02002 
Second by Senator Grinberg. 

Senator Kilzer asked for discussion and if  there was comfort with page 2 ,  l ine 10. 

Senator Mathern I wil l  oppose the motion just in the terms of the change but wil l  be 
supporting the bill in terms of keeping the bill a live. 

(11 :27) Discussion followed on the meaning of the 25%. 

A vote on Amendment 13.0505.02002 
Senator Kilzer - yes Senator Grinberg - yes Senator Mathern - no 

Senator Kilzer the bil l before us -no other amendments? 

Senator Mathern moved a do pass as amended. 

Senator Grinberg seconded the motion. 

A rol l  call vote was taken. Yea: 3 Nay: 0 Absent: 0 
Senator Kilzer wil l  carry this to the committee. 
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Senator Kilzer moved a do pass on the amendment. I 3 . 0 s-f).S: 0 J. 00 :h. 

Seconded by Senator Wanzek. 

Senator Mathern - In the subcommittee I offered an alternative amendment which 
would have brought this down to $75 million instead of the $150 million because I 
believe the $75 million is needed , and it wou ld also restrict it to clearly refer only to 
critical access hospitals and clinics. I think those 2 facilities would really help, especial ly 
in the oil patch . However, that amendment was not accepted in the subcommittee and I 
think we are going to be moving up before the legislative session is over. As an 
alternative to keep this bil l  alive I support this committee's amendment. 

Senator Warner - I wil l probably resist this amendment and I wil l  vote for the bil l 
regardless of the amendment but I have a real concern. It seems like there were 12 
parties tussling for money on this. One was the oil impact counties and facilities and the 
other one is the trauma facilities in which pretty m uch makes it a statewide issue for 
larger hospitals. (2:07) 

Senator Mathern - I just thought I would note that that was part of the committee 
discussion. The amendment that I had offered would have essentially made the money 
go to the oil impacted areas. My intent was to support the bill and I do not support the 
amendment. 

V.Chairman Grinberg - I concur with your assessment. I know there are some various 
approaches here and when Senator Mathern offered his amendment, I wanted a 
smal ler dol lar amount but I'm with you. This should be a program for the northwest 
where the demands are huge. I'm not interested in spreading money around for the big 
hospitals where the demand real ly rifles our efforts to help in an area that really needs 
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it. I'm going to forward an email that I received over the weekend that wil l  i l lustrate some 
of the pension funds that we have under management. When you see the one sheet, 
just imagine where it says XYZ investment company, imag ine Bank of North Dakota 
under the portfol io of the legacy fund. There is no reason in my opinion why we cannot 
have a d iscussion and I hope we do in  this committee because there are other bi l ls with 
the same concept. There is water, infrastructure for cities, and I think it totals over a 
bi l l ion dollars. The governor projected $750 mill ion left at the end of the 2015 biennium 
in  the S IFF fund. If we use al l  that up in  revolving loan funds we wil l have nothing in  the 
S I F F  fund at the ending fund balance. My point is, there is no reason why we, in a very 
low risk environment have the legacy fund invest, pick a number, $350-400 mil l ion, 
make the Bank of North Dakota responsible for at 2%, the bank gets a percent, so it's a 
2% loan rather than 1% and stil l  very low but we've got to use that capital to North 
Dakota's advantage and that's what this d iscussion should be about and I just don't 
know how we are going to get there yet. I th ink as an Appropriations Committee are 
going to be front and center on al l  these revolving loan funds and we wil l  have 
something to say at the end of the session. 

Senator Warner - I concur entirely with Senator Grind berg's assessment. I think the 
legacy fund can be uti l ized. It can be leveraged much more efficiently than it is for the 
benefit of North Dakota while sti l l  maintaining the integrity of the voter's intent when they 
set it up.  

Senator Kilzer- All  in  favor of the 2002 amendment - voice vote carried . 

Senator Kilzer - Then we have a technical corrections amendment that came from the 
auditor's office and that is 13.0505.02001. 

Senator Grindberg - I wou ld move that amendment. 

Seconded by Senator Kilzer. 

Senator Grindberg - This is making the language consistent with the audit functions if 
the bi l l  passes and that came from auditor. 

Voice vote carried. 

Senator Kilzer moved a Do Pass as Amended on 58 2187. 
Seconded by Senator Mathern. 

A rol l  call vote was taken.  Yea: 13 Nay: 0 Absent: 0. Senator Grindberg will 
carry the bill. The hearing was closed on 58 2187. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187 

Page 2, line 1 0, replace  with "three" 

Page 2, line 1 0, replace  with  

Page 2, line 26, remove "industrial commission is  for  with a certified 
 

Page 2, line 27, remove  firm to audit the" 

Page 2, line 27, replace "as  with "must be audited in accordance with section 
6-09-29" 

Page 3, line 1 ,  removed the underscore from "- Audit" 

Page 3, line 2, remove the underscore from "an d  costs of administration" 

Page 3, line 8, remove "Funds in the" 

Page 3, remove lines 9 through 1 2  

Page 3, line 13, overstrike "2." 

Page 3, line 30, replace ·�·A'enty" with "tJ:H:e" 

Page 3, line 30, replace   with   

Page 4, replace lines 14 through 1 7  with: 

"+-=-2. Funds in the medical facility infrastructure fund may be used for loans as 
provided under this section and to pay the costs of administration of the 
fund .  Annually, the Bank may deduct a service fee for administering the 
medical facility infrastructure fund maintained under this section. 

8:-3. The medical facility infrastructure fund must be audited in accordance £i�h 
section 6-09-29. The cost of the audit and any other actual costs incurred 
by the Bank on behalf of the fund must be paid from the fund."  

Page 4, line 20, replace "$15 0, 000,000" with "$1 2, 000, 000" 

Page 5, line 1, replace "Sections 1 and" with "Section" 

Page 5, line 1, remove the second "and" 

Page 5 ,  line 1, replace "are" with "is" 

Page 5, line 2, replace "are" with "is" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 
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Amendment to: SB 2187 
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1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d " f  r ·  t d  d t l  eve s an  tons an  e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 
Expenditures 
Appropriations 

2015·2017 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015  Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 
Counties 
Cities 
School Districts 
Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

All costs to administer and audit the proposed Medical Facility Infrastructure Loan Program will be paid out of the 
program fund and there will not be any fiscal impact to the General Fund. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2187, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS ( 1 3  YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSE NT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2 1 87 
was p laced on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 2, l ine 1 0, replace  with "three" 

Page 2, l ine 1 0, replace  with  

Page 2, l ine 26, remove "industr ial commission is  for  with a certified 
 

Page 2, l ine 27, remove  firm to audit the" 

Page 2, l ine 27, replace "as  with "must be audited in accordance  section 
6-09-29" 

Page 3, l ine 1 ,  removed the underscore from "- Audit" 

Page 3, l ine 2 ,  remove the underscore from "and costs of administration" 

Page 3,  l ine 8, remove "Funds in  

Page 3, remove lines 9 through 1 2  

Page 3 ,  l ine 1 3, overstr ike "2." 

Page 3,  l ine 30, replace "twemy" with "tflfe" 

Page 3 ,  l ine 30, replace   with   

Page 4, replace lines 1 4  through 1 7  with: 

"+-:2. Funds in the medical facility infrastr ucture fund may be used for loans as 
provided under this section and to pay the costs of administration of the 
fund. Annually, the Bank may deduct a service fee for administer ing the 
medical facility infrastructure fund maintained under this section. 

&-3. The medical facility infrastructure fund must be audited in accordance 
with section 6-09-29. The cost of the audit and any other actua l  costs 
incurred by the Bank on behalf of the fund must be paid from the fund." 

Page 4, l ine 20, replace "$1 50,000,000" with "$1 2,000,000" 

Page 5,  l ine 1 ,  replace "Sections 1 and" with "Section" 

Page 5, l ine 1 ,  remove the second "and" 

Page 5, l ine 1 ,  replace "are" with "is" 

Page 5, l ine 2, replace "are" with "is" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Sen. J. Lee: We were looking at larger projects. There is a great difficu lty in NO for these 
institutions to access money for these projects. It is intended to look at those bigger 
projects. 

John Vastag , Executive Director for the Health Pol icy Consortium, testified in support 
of the bill. (See Testimony #1 ) (Also passed around a handout, See Handout #2) 

1 5:29 
Chairman Weisz: Based on your suggested amendment you are looking at a maximum of 
$1 0 mil lion. That would be a $40 million project? 

John Vastag: The total package would be $75 mil lion with a maximum individual loan to 
an individual facility of $10 mil lion. Yes, the project could be $40 mil lion or more, but it 
would cap out at $1 0 mil lion on that type of project. 

Chairman Weisz: The smal lest loan would $250,000; the project size has a minimum of 
$250,000 , correct? 

John Vastag: Correct. 

Rep. Laning:  Wouldn't 75% be from the loan program? 

John Vastag: It should be that 75% would be from the loan program. 

Chairman Weisz: That's not what the language says. It says the maximum loan would be 
$2.5 mil lion on a $1 0 mil lion loan. That is 25% not, 75%. 

John Vastag: It was designed for 75% to come from loan, and 25% coming from other 
sources. 

Representative Oversen :  The amendment from the Senate was to change 75% to 25%. 

Chairman Weisz: It was amended . 

John Vastag: The original intent of the bill was for 75% to come from loan,  and 25% 
coming from other sources. It started out with $1 50 million. 

Rep. Mooney: Do we want to put it back to the 75/25 as originally intended? 

John Vastag: It would be wonderfu l if you did that. 

Chairman Weisz: Assuming the $1 2 mil lion stayed , would you want it stil l  want it to be 
75%? You will go through the money faster, and it will limit the number of projects. 

John Vastag: If it stays at $1 2 million, we looked at the prospect of using those dollars to 
buy down interest rates at local banks. In that case we would want to limit it to about 
$3,000 ,000 per loan. 
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20:58 
Andy Peterson, Greater North Dakota Chamber of Commerce, and also representing 
the North Dakota Petroleum Council ,  testified in support of the bi l l .  We recognize the 
needs out there. This is not just an oil country issue, it is a statewide issue. Last summer 
we participated in a project cal led 2020 and Beyond. It was about where North Dakota 
needs to be in the year 2020 and beyond that. Some of the issues that came up were child 
care, housing, and health care. These issues came up in all parts of the state. Heath care, 
especial ly in the rural areas, is becoming a great concern. 

24:09 
Jerry E.  Jurena, President of ND Hospital Association, testified in support of the bi ll. 
(See Testimony #3) (Handed out testimony from Daniel Kelly, CEO McKenzie County 
Health Care System. See Testimony #4) 
Rep. Porter: In the first part of the session we had a discussion about the bad debt 
situation , negative cash flows, and the crisis side of oil impacted rural health facilities. 
Based on that conversation, what would they use to pay these loans back? How would 
they qualify with a negative cash flow? 

Jerry E. Jurena: There are a number of processes. They would go to their communities 
and ask for tax support. They could maybe make it work with and a low interest loan 
program. Also with the increase volume of services they have, there are reimbursements in 
Medicare and Medicaid for the construction process in the bi l ling process. 

Rep. Mooney: This bi l l  does not limit to just western part of state does it, and are you 
finding out that there is a need in non-oil impact areas of North Dakota as well? 

Jerry E.  Jurena: There is need to capital dol lars no matter what part of the state you are 
in. This is specifically for the oil producing counties of the state. 

30:20 
Darrold Bertsch, CEO of Sakakawea Medical Center in Beulah, testified in support of 
the bi l l .  (See Testimony #5) We wil l  also be doing a renovation to our emergency room. 
42(Aiso handed out testimony of Becky Hansen CEO of Southwest Healthcare Services 
in Bowman.  See Testimony #6) 

33:00 
Chairman Weisz requested that Senator J. Lee answer a question. We had a discussion 
about the 75% that was dropped to 25%. From your committee's perspective if the number 
stayed at $1 2 mil lion, would you sti ll want that percent to go to 75%? 

Sen. J. Lee: We felt strongly that 25% was not going to be adequate for the facilities that 
need it. It is the access to larger amounts of capital is the need here. It does have to be 
repayable, and they have to be able to demonstrate that their business plan is workable. 
We did not favor that change in the policy committee. 
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Chairman Weisz: Sheldon Wolf, (Director of Health Information Technology of North 
Dakota) can you give us an update on how the HIT loan program worked that went through 
the Bank of North Dakota? In some ways this is the same. 

Sheldon Wolf: Director of Health Information Technology of North Dakota: The loan 
program that you are referring to is the Health Information Technology Loan Fund. Two 
biennia ago $5 mil lion dollars went into that fund . Last biennium there was another $5 
mil lion added . We loan that out with a ten year payback period , with 1% . It has been 
working very wel l .  We have over $10 million dollars loaned out, and the money is coming 
in . We are currently sitting on about $500,000 in a revolving loan fund . It is open through 
the end of this week. A lot of the critical access hospitals and clinics have received the 
money to meet meaningful use.  A couple of the facilities that we loaned money to were the 
first in the state to meet meaningful use requirements. It has worked out very wel l .  I n  
some of the cases, when they meet meaningful use the federal government provides them 
with additional money. Then they can use that money to pay their loan back. 
On page 2, line 7, it indicates the big hospitals, is that what is meant? 

Bob Humann:  Senior Vice President of Lending, Bank of NO: We have been working 
with this group and trying to craft a program that would work for them. If you look at some 
of the numbers that have been presented , 25% is not going to meet their needs. I 
recommend that this be raised back up to $75 mil lion and raising the dollar amount back to 
$10 million . I would also recommend that the percentage of the project cost be looked at. 
It real ly limits the amount of loan dollars that the facilities are able to tap .  Our role would be 
to approve these applications and to service the loans over the twenty-five year period . 

Chairman Weisz: Would you require a lead lender on each of these? 

Bob Humann:  There would not be a lead lender the way this is put together. 

Rep. Laning:  Would the bank consider up to $75 million of loan funds? 

Bob Humaan: We could come up with $75 million dollars. We would not want to lock the 
interest rate at 1% for twenty-five years. Eventually the interest rates are going to climb,  
and we are not going to be able to generate any profits at 1%. The medical infrastructure 
would be a fund that the bank would administer, that would off balance (inaudible) of the 
bank. The reason for that is that some of these wil l be riskier loans. Repayment might be 
tough until we see some changes in the way the medical providers are reimbursed . It is a 
matter if the legislature wants to take $75 million out of the S I IF  and make it available for 
medical infrastructure.  

Rep. Si lbernagel: If you had a pool fund of $75 mil lion with a maximum of $10 mil lion per 
project, and a 50150 split, would that be more appropriate to meeting some of those project 
needs? 

Bob Humann:  I t  would be. You do have a number of facilities that wil l  not even get to the 
$1 0 million figure.  The larger ones will have to come up with some way to come up with 
the additional funding. 
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Rep. Fehr: If we stay with the current version of funding 25% ,  wouldn't there have to be a 
lead lender? 

Bob Humann :  It depends on the scenario. I f  it is $1 0 mil lion per project that they can 
finance 75% of the project, they then would only have to come up with 25% .  I f  a borrower 
needed $1 5 mil lion dollars, and the maximum they can get from the program is $1 0 million ,  
they would have to borrow the additional $5 mil lion dollars if they couldn't come up with it. 
In  a lot of cases there may be more than one lender. Most of the ones that we see in these 
projects wil l  be bonding versus a lead lender. Bank of North Dakota has the ability to not 
use a lead lender with these special funds as long as they are put together by the 
legislature. There are other funds like this where the applications are made directly to the 
bank. 

Rep. Fehr: If we leave this at 25% won't there be a lead lender. 

Chairman Weisz: They don't require a lead lender, but there might be one for this loan 
program.  

Bob Humann:  That is correct. If you are going to look at additional dollars ($75 million) ,  it 
makes more sense to change the percentage of the project costs so that you tap into more 
of these facilities so you can spread the money out more. If you use fewer dol lars,  then 
you wil l  want to do less of the project costs. It will put more financial burden on the 
hospitals to come up with more of the project costs. 

Rep. Mooney: What is a S I IF  fund? 

Bob Humann :  That is Strategic Improvement and Investment Fund that is administered by 
the former State Land Department. 

There was no further testimony on SB 21 87. 
The hearing was closed on SB 2 1 87. 
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Bi l l  Carrier: Rep. Anderson 



1 3.0505.07000 

Amendment to: SB 2187 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/241201 3  

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d " f  r ·  t d  d t l  eve s an  tons an  e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 
Expenditures 
Appropriations 

2015·2017 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015  Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 
Counties 
Cities 
School Districts 
Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

All costs to administer and audit the proposed Medical Facility Infrastructure Loan Program will be paid out of the 
program fund and there will not be any fiscal impact to the General Fund. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE B I LL NO. 21 87 

Page 2, line 7 ,  remove "and to  that are     that 
receive" 

Page 2, line 8, remove "trauma  from oil  counties" 

Page 2, line 1 0, replace "three" with "fifteen" 

Page 2, line 1 0, replace  with  

Page 4, line 21 , replace "$1 2,000,000" with "$1 00,000,000" 

Page 4, line 30, replace "201 7" with "2013" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 13.05 05 .03002 
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201 3 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 
House Appropriations Committee 

Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

S B  21 87 
4/4/1 3 

Job #20902 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for i ntroduction of bi ll/resolution: 

A B ILL  for an Act to create and enact section 6-09-47 of the North Dakota Century Code,  
relating to  a Bank of  North Dakota medical facility infrastructure loan program; to  amend 
and reenact section 6-09-47 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the medical 
facility infrastructure loan program; to provide for transfer; to provide an appropriation; to 
provide a continuing appropriation; to provide an effective date; and to provide an 
expiration date. 

Minutes: Attached amendments . 03003 #1. 

Rep. Robin Weisz, District 14: I ntroduced the bill .  This bil l helps finance hospital 
construction programs especial ly in the oil impacted counties.  This is administered to the 
Bank of North Dakota. There is a 1% interest rate that would allow a maximu m  of $1 5 
million or  75% of the program cost. The construction has to be for 30 years; it's supposed 
to have a minimu m  of a 30 year life with a 25 year loan repayment program.  The money 
com es out of the strategic investment and improvements fund; the repayment g oes back 
into this fund including the interest paid on the project. There is a procedu re set up that 
indicates the parties have to do construction within two years. The governor is supposed to 
establish a task force to review the loan applications and make recommendations to the 
bank. I think the bill provides a fair amount of protection for the bank and for the state. 

02:50 
Chairman Delzer: Your loan repayment comes back to the S I F  (strategic investment fund) 
where the money originally comes from? What does the bank get for processing these 
loans? 

Rep. Weisz: The bank is able to take appropriate administration fees. 

Rep. Skarphol :  Page 4 lines 1 6-1 8. 

Rep. Weisz: Those costs wil l  be deducted and the principal and interest of any payments 
back then wou ld go into the fund . 

Chairman Delzer: Did you ask the bank what they normally take? 
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Rep. Weisz: We did not. My understanding is the fees would be minimal. 

Chairman Delzer: The question is whether or not the SIF wou ld ever get its money back 
total ly if the 1 %  is not enough to cover the bank fees. 

Rep. Weisz: They indicated the 1 %  covers the bank fees, but it doesn't cover the risk. A 
question was asked if the bank should just loan the money and the bank said that at 1 %  it 
wasn't g oing to cover the risk p lus their fees. 

Chairman Delzer: Is there any security required for these loans? 

Rep. Weisz: That would be established by the rules that are set up here by the bank. 

Chairman Delzer: How did you come up with the 1 5M and 75%? The 75% seems a little 
hig h  to me with a 1 %  loan. 

Rep. Weisz: The Senate had come to similar n umbers. After discussion with the hospitals,  
it  became apparent you had to have it to make enough difference between getting a 4% 
loan and a 1 %  loan. At least you have a 25% equity stake in there. 

Chairman Delzer: Are these first mortgages, or can they borrow the 25% from a local bank 
if they can talk them into it then borrow this 75% from this fund? 

Rep. Weisz: These are not loan g uarantees; in reality, they are a first mortgage. If  they 
can go out and borrow the balance they would be free to do so. 

Chairman Delzer: There's nothing in the bil l  that says it needs to be a first mortgage on the 
facility. 

Rep. Weisz: No there isn't but I can't imagine that a bank would do that. This isn't a loan 
guarantee so they are not backing a loan through a principal lending . There is no primary 
lender required u nder this bill .  

Chairman Delzer: I know you are kind of mirroring the school financing one; did you do 
any checking on whether there is any security there? Representative Sanford , you've been 
part of one of these loans so was there any security in that process when you borrowed 
from that coa l  severance? 

Rep. Sanford: There was and that is you have an approved mil l  levy either through a 
b uilding fund or  through your general fund that the bank uses as security for that. 

Chairman Delzer: For the school that wou ld be the case, but for a hospital there isn't any 
taxing a uthority that I'm aware of. 

Rep. Weisz: The bank indicated they would use those same requirements, there would 
have to be a source of repayment. In most cases it would require a mil l  levy or some other 
source of funds. 
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Rep. Kem penich: I n  most cases the communities are already committing local tax dollars 
to help run these. It wouldn't be a new concept to them. Usual ly it's part of the sales tax 
they col lect. Just about every community has some type of local tax match. 

Rep. Skarphol: The original coal tax school loan program only let schools borrow whatever 
revenue they were receiving in coal taxes would cover the cost of the loan. The coa l  taxes 
that community was col lecting went to repay the loan u ntil a loan was repaid. That was the 
original design of the coal tax repayment program. 

Chairman Delzer: We changed that a few biennia ago and expanded that statewide I 
believe. 

Rep. Skarphol: As I read this, an entity can borrow u p  to $15M as a maximum? 

Rep. Weisz: Correct. 

Chairman Delzer: Do you feel those numbers are pretty solid and this committee should 
not deal with them; the maximu m  and the percentage? 

Rep. Weisz: I think the maximu m  has some room; if you get a n umber too low it won't be 
worth it to apply to this program. It has to be a level effective for a wide range of p rojects. 
We had lots of discussion on the 75%; the committee believed that level gives them that 
ability to cash-flow that construction ,  expansion,  or remodel. 

11:20 
Chairman Delzer: I n  you r  discussion,  how many entities were there acting like they wanted 
to get something from this? 

Rep. Weisz: There were 6 or 7 that would be applying tomorrow if this went into effect. 

Chairman Delzer: This is keyed for the western part of the state, or not? 

Rep.  Weisz: It's statewide, but priority must be given to oil producing counties. 

Chairman Delzer: Is there anything that says there's a certain date to apply then they are 
a l l  looked at competitively or is it a first come? 

Rep. Weisz: It would be first come first served . 

Chairman Delzer: Was there m uch discussion about a window of time to review these? 

Rep. Weisz: No, the majority of the need is in the oil producing counties for expansion and 
rem odeling. It is open to facilities that have a need in the other counties .  

Chairman Delzer: I s  there a sunset? I see in  here that it's continual ly appropriated. To me, 
that means it might last longer than two years? 
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Rep. Weisz: The appropriation is good from July 1 2013 to 2015. The effective date or the 
terms of the program goes through 2043, so that's covering, in essence, the loan 
repayment p rogram .  By 2017, any funds remaining u nspent have to go back into the 
strategic i nvestment fund . 

Chairman Delzer: You d id that so that there would be two years from July 1, 2015 which 
is the e nd date of your appropriation? 

Rep. Weisz: They have u nti l  2015 to get the loan,  and 2017 to do the b ui ld ing . After that, 
the money goes back i n  the S I F  and is gone. 

C hairman Delzer: Do they just need to be u nder construction, or  completed before they 
get the money? 

Rep. Weisz: I would assume they'l l  get the money once it's approved before they start 
construction . The recipient of the loan must complete the construction withi n  24 months of 
approval of the loan .  Fai lure to comply could resu lt in  forfeiture of  the entire loan received.  
This is to make sure that once you get the loan you can't just s it  on it and years down the 
road you start the construction .  

Rep.  Kem penich: They can't invest the funds? 

Rep. Weisz: Right. 

Rep. Skarphol:  What if a facil ity wants to do a $25M project? They can borrow $15M here; 
if the other $10M is borrowed from a local bank then there is no definition of the position of 
the Bank of North Dakota with regard to that. With a local bank you would also want first 
position.  

Rep. Weisz: I would assume that. 

Rep. G lassheim: Going back to the oi l  producing counties on page 2 at the top ,  this says 
the criteria m ust g ive priority so does that mean the only way to get the m oney is to be i n  
an o i l  p roducing county? 

Rep. Weisz: The bi l l  is intended to be primarily for oi l  producing counties. If the funds aren't 
a l l  a llocated , it doesn't el iminate someone from elsewhere in  the state that meets the 
criteria to qualify. It's not exclusive. 

Rep. Kreidt: Regarding the financi ng, if you are looking at a $25M project and secure 
$15M of it, you'd probably have to do a m unicipal bond to do the rest of that project. You 
p robably wou ld n't find a bank that would borrow you $10M. 

Rep. Kempenich:  min  20:00 If it cashflows at $25M and they want more then the 
community wi l l  have to get involved because if there's a bank in front of the state the state 
is going to know that u p  front and look at it accordingly. If this piece is i n  front of a bank it's 
going to be the same conversation. I don't think there wou ld be a conflict if someone gets 
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behi nd on it because this is going to be a key piece in  getting any of these projects off the 
g round. A private bank loan is going to probably be the last step. 

Chairman Delzer: The way this is set up ,  does the bank have the a uthority to reject the 
loan if the task force approves the loan? 

Rep. Weisz: I believe under the language I would say they would. 

Rep. Skarphol:  Page 2 l i ne 12 it says must provide a repayment schedule no longer than 
25 years . While there is an  oi l  county connection on a task force there is rea l ly no provision 
that requires there be any preference given to oil counties that I can see in  the b i l l. The 
on ly con nection I see is that there must be a member from the oil producing counties in  the 
state. 

Rep. Weisz: On page 2 l ines 5 and 6 states they must g ive priority to applicants that are 
located i n  oi l  producing counties. 

Rep. Nelson: min  23:00. With cost reimbursement for hospitals,  this is a tool that cou ld be 
used by hospitals across the state because with the level of reimbursement in  many cases 
you're looking at Medicaid reimbursement that is 60-80% of you r  business m odel. With a 
new facil ity or  part of a facil ity the depreciation that is no longer being used i n  an  older 
facil ity can now be used and you r  reimbursement model goes up and that's what cashflows 
these projects. I th ink we're over thinking this . 

Rep. Weisz: Distributed amendments .03003 and reviewed. See attached amendments 
#1. We're taking this money out of the $200M pool that is a lso being used for school 
construction programs. It's saying that if there is $1OOM then it will go for this. 

Chairman Delzer: That's part of that fund being set up in  1319. 

Rep. Weisz: Correct. 

Chairman Delzer: You're trying to protect us so that it isn't $200M and $100M for this.  
What about p utting in  a reporting requirement to the budget section or to the next legislative 
session? 

Rep.  Weisz: We wou ld be f ine with that. 

Chairman Delzer: Further questions? Thank you. 
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Job #20944 
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Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution:  

A Bi l l  for an Act to create and enact section 6-09-47 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to a Bank of North Dakota medical facility infrastructure loan p rogram; to amend 
and reenact section 6-09-47 of the North Dakota Century Code,  relating to the medical 
facility infrastructure loan program; to provide for transfer; to provide an appropriation; to 
p rovide a continuing appropriation; to provide an effective date; and to provide a n  
expiration date. 

M i nutes:  Attached amendments . 03003 and . 03004 

Chairman Delzer: This bil l  deals with loans. With the way the house brought amendments 
in we have a new bil l  that creates a loan program with a maximu m  of $15 million or 75% of 
the project for hospitals. It's supposed to be in essence for hospital buildings and in the oil 
field. There may be some concerns on the language in the bil l that looks at them doing 
these one at a time as com pared to a time frame and approval at a certain time.  This is my 
concern . I f  you do them one at a time it's a first come first serve so you don't have the 
essence of whether you're going out to the area that seems to be going through the g rowth 
o n  the emergency rooms and things as compared to the rest of the state. We may need to 
have discussion on whether or not we think 75% of the total project is right. I g uess the 
$15 million is the maximu m  of both. What are you r  wishes? 

Rep. Kempenich: This is an issue. It's targeted at smaller communities; the way it is 
worded, the $15M wil l  be the key to getting it started. I don't think banks or anybody else 
wil l  get involved and it's going to be more of what the local comm unity does with it. I think 
that wil l  be the d riving force. It's either going to be used or it's going to go back. I don't 
think there is a lot of g rey area in how it's going to get used. 

Chairman Delzer: We did have an amendment offered by the policy committee that deals 
with the language to put in there that makes sure this was part of the $200M that resides in 
1319 instead of on top of that. I know I cou ldn't support the bil l  without that being part of it. 

Rep. Kempenich moved amendment .03003. 
Chairman Delzer: The amendment puts the contingent word in there that says it has to be 
part of the $200M that currently resides in 1319. They could only have $100M of that 
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$200M for the school loan program along with the $50M that resides in the coal severance 
fund so there would be $150 for schools and $100M for this hospital .  I 've got a note on 
here to report to the budget section on the usage of  this money. 

Rep. Kempenich: Also amend to include a requirement to report to the next 
legislative assembly. 

Rep. Kreidt: Seconded. 

Rep. Wieland:  I 'd like to know what comm unities realistically expect to use these funds. 

Chairman Delzer: I think Tioga might be one, Watford City, and Bowman is in the process 
of b uilding one already. 

Rep. Wieland: There is going to have to be money in those communities to make this 
work. 

C hairman Delzer: We don't want to open this up as a hearing but, Jerry, do you have 
those com m unities you think are most likely to do this? 

Jerry Jurena, President of the Hospital Association: Watford City, Tioga, Stanley, 
Bowman,  Hazen are fou r  of the six that said they would like money for projects. 

Chairman Delzer: Is that money for projects for expansion of their emergency room or are 
they total ly rebuilding their hospitals? 

Jerry Jurena: Bowman and Watford City are looking at total projects; new hospitals. 

Chairman Delzer: We may want to consider that. In discussion the other day Rep.  Nelson 
said the keys to this from the hospital standpoint is the depreciation goes back into this so 
they kind of get paid back. 

Rep.  Monson: I see a minimum of $1M in here for the project but I 'm not finding a 
m aximum. 

Chairman Delzer: Do not exceed the lesser of $15M or 75% of the actua l  cost of the 
p roject. 

VOICE VOTE: MOTION CARRIES TO ACCEPT AMENDMENT .03003. 
Rep. Kempenich: Made a motion for a Do Pass as Amended. 

Rep. Sanford : Seconded. 

Rep. Bellew: Why does this need to be a continuing appropriation? 

Chairman Delzer: You would need this continuing appropriation because this is a loan 
p roject that a llows them to loan this money and have the money come back in and returned 
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to the S I F  fund which is a 30 year payback. The loan would be there as long as there is 
money to loan. The money does not come back to this same fund . The return m oney al l  
g oes back to the S I F  fund so it should be capped at $100M. When $100M runs out it is not 
a revolving loan; it should be a solid loan fund of $100M. The expiration date in section 4 
of this act is through 2017 which is another reason you wou ld need the continuing 
appropriation to get away from the return language. It needs to be 2017 because they 
figu re it would take almost a year and a half to design these and get the application through 
then they had two years to start the project after that which puts it with an effective date of 
July 31, 2017. The loan program wou ld be limited to the $100M to July 31, 2017 that they 
wou ld have to be completed on the project. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 15 YES 5 NO 2 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES AS A DO PASS AS AMENDED. 

Rep. Kem penich  will carry this bil l .  



1 3.0505.07000 

Amendment to: SB 2187 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/241201 3  

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d " f  r ·  t d  d t l  eve s an  tons an  e un er curren aw. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 
Expenditures 
Appropriations 

2015·2017 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015  Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 
Counties 
Cities 
School Districts 
Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

All costs to administer and audit the proposed Medical Facility Infrastructure Loan Program will be paid out of the 
program fund and there will not be any fiscal impact to the General Fund. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 
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13. 05 05 .03004 
Title.05 000 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations 

April 5 ,  2013 

PROPOSED AME ND M E NTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE B I LL NO. 2 187 

In  lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 1 1 75 of the H ouse 
Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2187 is amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  line 4, replace "an" with "a contingent" 

Page 1 ,  line 5 ,  after the second semicolon insert "to provide for a report;" 

Page 2, line 7 ,  remove "and to  that are     that 
receive" 

· Page 2, line 8, remove "trauma  from  counties" 

Page 2, line 1 0, replace "three" with "fifteen" 

Page 2, line 1 0, replace  with  

Page 3, line 23, remove           
       

Page 3, line 26, replace "tf!re" with "fifte" 

Page 3, line 26, replace   with   

Page 4, line 1 9, after "3." insert "CONTINGENT" 

Page 4, line 1 9, replace "There" with "If the board of university and school lands confirms that it 
will authorize no more than $ 1 00,000,000 from the strategic investment and 
improvements fund to provide school construction projects under section 15 . 1 -36-02, 
there" 

Page 4, line 21 , replace "$1 2,000,000" with "$1 00,000,000" 

Page 4, line 28, replace "30" with "3 1 "  

Page 4, after line 29, insert: 

"SECTION 5. REPORT TO SIXTY-FOURTH LEGISLATIVE ASS E M BLY. The 
Bank of N orth Dakota shall report to the sixty-fourth legislative assembly on the status 
of the loan program provided for in this Act." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF P URPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2187 - Bank of North Dakota - House Action 
Executive Senate House 

Budget Version Changes 
Medical facility infrastructure $12,000,000 $88,000,000 

loans 

Total all funds $0 $12,000,000 $88,000,000 
Less estimated income 0  88 000 000 

General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page No. 1 

House 
Version 

$100,000,000 

$100,000,000 
 

$0 

0.00 



Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail of House Changes 

Adds Funding 
for Loans1 

Medical facility infrastructure $88,000,000 
loans 

Total all funds $88,000,000 
Less estimated income  

General fund $0 

FTE 0.00 

Total House 
Changes 
$88,000,000 

$88,000,000 
88,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

1 This amendment increases the funding for medical facil ity infrastructure loans from $ 1 2  mi l l ion to 
$ 1 00 mi l l ion, al l  of which is from the strategic investment and improvements fund.  The funding is 
contingent on the Department of Trust Lands confirming that it wil l  authorize no more than $ 1 00 mi l l ion 
from the strategic investment and improvements fund for school construction project loans. 

This amendment also requ i res the Bank of North Dakota to report on the status of the medical facil ity 
i nfrastructure loan program to the 641h Legislative Assembly. 

Page No. 2 



    
Roll Call Vote #: 

House  

201 3  HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO.  

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number ,. o3 oo3 

Committee 

Action Taken:  D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended IXf Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to  D Reconsider 

Motion M ade By        
 Yes No  

Chairman Delzer   
Vice Chairman   Thoreson 

 Bellew  Wieland 
  
 Dosch 

Rep. Grande  Boe 
 Hawken  Glassheim 
 Kreidt   
 Martinson  Holman 
 Monson  Williams 
 Nelson 
 Pollert 
 Sanford 
 Skarphol 

Total Yes No 

Yes No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

. o3oo3 flus iX rtf6rl-i� re1uitUMt.r.t - to  r-«1- �<rl��bl) 
volu. votL co.rfl'e[ 



Date:  
Roll Cal l  Vote #:    

House  

201 3  HOUSE STAN DING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTE S  

BILL/RESOLUTIO N  N O .  ��  
 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken : Il Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass IKJ Amended 0 Adopt Amendment 

0 Rerefer to  0 Reconsider 

Motion Made By   Seconded By   
Representatives Yes No Representatives 

C hairman Delzer    
Vice Chairman    Thoreson 

 Bel lew )(  Wieland 
   
 Dosch )( 
 Grande   Bee 
 Hawken   G lassheim 
 Kreidt    

Rep. Martinson   Holman 
 Monson   Wil liams 
 Nelson  
 Pollert  
 S anford  
   

Total Yes I S  No s 

Yes No 
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Absent 

Floor Assignment 
 

If the vote is on a n  amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 8, 2013 2:06pm 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_62_009 
Carrier: Kempenich 

Insert LC: 13.0505.03004 Title: 05000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2187, as reengrossed and amended: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS ( 1 5 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Reengrossed SB 2 1 87, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

I n  l ie u  of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 1 1 75 of the House 
Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2 1 87 is amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, replace "an" with "a contingent" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 5, after the second semicolon insert "to provide for a report;" 

Page 2, l ine 7, remove "and to  that are     that 
receive" 

Page 2, l ine 8, remove "trauma  from  counties" 

Page 2, l ine 1 0, replace "three" with "fifteen" 

Page 2, line 1 0, replace  with  

Page 3, l ine 23, remove          
        

Page 3,  l ine 26, replace "tAfe" with "fifte" 

Page 3, l ine 26, replace   with   

Page 4, l ine 1 9, after "3." insert "CONTINGENT" 

Page 4, l ine 1 9, replace "There" with " If the board of university and school lands confirms 
that it wi l l  authorize no more than $1 00,000,000 from the strategic investment and 
improvements fund to provide school construction projects under section 1 5. 1 -36-02, 
there" 

Page 4, l ine 2 1 ,  replace "$1 2,000,000" with "$1 00,000,000" 

Page 4,  l ine 28, replace "30" with "31 "  

Page 4 ,  after l ine 29, insert: 

"SECTION 5. REPORT TO SIXTY -FOURTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The 
Bank of North Dakota shall report to the sixty-fourth legislative assembly on the 
status of the loan program provided for in this Act." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2187 - Bank of North Dakota - House Action 

Medical facility infrastructure 
loans 

Executive 
Budget 

Total all funds $0 
Less esHmated income 0 

General fund $0 

FTE 0.00 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE 

Senate 
Version 
$12,000,000 

$12,000,000 
12,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Page 1 

House 
Changes 
$88,000,000 

$88,000,000 
88,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$100,000,000 

$100,000,000 
 

$0 
0.00 
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Insert LC: 13.0505.03004 Title: 05000 

Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail  of House Changes 

Adds Funding 
for loans' 

Medical facility infrastructure $88,000,000 
loans 

Total all funds $88,000,000 
Less estimated income 88,000,000 

General fund $0 

FTE 0.00 

Total House 
Changes 
$88,000,000 

$88,000,000 
88,000,000 

$0 
0.00 

1 This amendment increases the funding for medical faci lity infr astructure loans from 
$ 1 2  mill ion to $ 1 00 mil lion , all of which is from the strategic investment and improvements 
fund.  The funding is contingent on the Department of Trust Lands confirming that it wi l l  
authorize no more than $ 1 00 mil l ion from the strategic investment and improvements fund 
for school construction project loans. 

This amendment also requires the Bank of North Dakota to report on the status of the 
medical faci l ity i nfrastr ucture loan program to the 641h Legislative Assembly. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_ 62_ 009 
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The motion carries 

Sen. Anderson closes the conference committee on SB 2187 



13.0505.07000 FISCAL NOTE
Requestedby LegislativeCouncil

01/24/2013

Amendment to: SB 2187

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding
levels and approoriatlons antlcloated under current law.

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal Impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

All costs to administer and audit the proposed Medical Facility Infrastructure Loan Program will be paid out of the
program fund and there will not be any fiscal impact to the General Fund.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A,please:

A. Revenues:Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation.



Name: Robert A. Humann

Agency: Bank of North Dakota

Telephone: 328.5703
Date Prepared: 01/24/2013
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Module 10: s_cfcomrep_77 _004 

Insert LC: 1 3.0505.03008 

2014,  as uncommitted school construction loans shall be transferred to the medical 
facility i nfrastructure fund and is appropriated for the purpose of loans by the Bank of 
North Dakota to provide medical faci l ity infrastructure loans under section 1 of this 
Act. 

SECTION 3. BALANCE TRANSFER. The Bank of North Dakota shal l  
transfer any balance remaining in the medical facility infrastructure fund on July 31 , 
20 1 7, to the state treasurer for deposit in the strategic investment and improvements 
fund. 

SECTION 4. REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The Bank of North 
Dakota shall report to the sixty-fourth and sixty-fifth leg islative assemblies on the 
status of the loan program provided for in this Act." 

Renumber accordingly 

Reengrossed SB 2 1 87 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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To address the primary cha l lenges for hea lth care delivery identified through this study, policymakers 
wil l  need to consider innovative programs to improve access to capital for the hea lth care industry. 
Potential solutions include expanding the oi l  impact grant program and/or establishing a streamlined, 
low-or no-interest loan program for capital projects. Coordinating recommended solutions for the 
remaining cha l lenges would best be accomplished through an active task force involving health care 
providers, policymakers, o i l  industry representatives and other business leaders. 

-:;5 (  
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3. Convene a Governor's tas k  force to actively manage challe nges and find 

solutions. 
• A task force focusing on health care i n  western North Dakota should be commissioned and 

appointed by the governor. Suggested task force members include: 
o Administrators from hospita ls and health systems throughout North Dakota ; 
o Representatives from the oi l  i ndustry, with a focus on developing partnersh ips with the 

health care industry and rural communities; and 
o Representatives from other  stakeholder organizations including the long-term care 

industry, EMS professionals, e lected officials and business leaders. 

• The task  force wou ld assist the governor in setting parameters for low- or no-interest loan 
programs and the expansion/restructuring of Oi l  Impact Grants. 

• The task f2,n:e would provide ongoing advice to the governor as hea lth  care needs of tht, . .  
population in western North Dakota continue to evolve. 
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Testimony 

 
enate B i l l   

Senate Appropriations 

Good M orn ing  Cha i rman  Ho lmberg and members of the  Senate 

a n d  I serve as  the Executive D i rector for the Hea lt h  Po l icy onsort i um 

which i s  made up  of  Trin ity Hea lth Systems, Altru H ea lth  Systems, and  

Sanford Hea lt h  System s  th ro ughout N D. 

I a m  before you today i n  support of SB 2 187 a n d  to g ive you some 

background  on h ow th i s  pa rt icu l a r  b i l l  came a bo ut .  

Decembe r  9 ,  2011-Governor Da l rymple attended o u r  q u a rterly H PC 

m eeting i n  G ra n d  Forks .  Wh i le there he  l istened to concerns from our  

members that the  o i l  d evelopment was having o n  the i r  d ay to  day 

operat ions .  

The governor  encouraged the members of H PC to t h i n k  o utside the box 

a n d  to cons ider  a pp ly ing for funds through the Lan� G ra nt Fund 

program .  Med Center One attempted to  work w it h  the  po l it ica l 

s ubd ivis ions i n  D ick inson to secu re fund ing for the i r  new c l i n ic .  They 

were unsuccessful i n  fin d i ng a pol it ica l  subd ivis ion  to coo rd i nate the 

a pp l ication with .  



We had one req uest for the governor, to host a jo int  m eeting with 

rep res�ntatives from the  o i l  i n dustry and the hea lth care industry. 

O n  January 23, 2012 the  governor was gracious enough to host the 

jo int o i l  i ndust ry/hea lth care meeting. The m eeti ng was attended by 

representatives from a b road  spectrum of the h ea lthca re i ndustry, the 

i n su ra nce i ndustry, a n d  the  o i l  industry. There was an exce l lent 

exchange of information, h owever it was conclu ded t h at a lthough there 

was a lot of i nformation, there was no forma l  data to s upport the 

conce rns  noted . 

The Hea lth  Po l icy Consort i um  ind icated they wou l d  check with their 

members to have an Oi l  I mpact Study completed .  At their J anuary 

m eeting, the members of H PC unan imously agreed to pay for the study. 

The Oi l  I mpact Stu dy was completed du ring the l ate s pr ing and over the  

s ummer  of 2012.  

On September  26, 2012 rep resentatives from H PC, N DHA, and  the O i l  

I n dustry presented the  fin d ings of  the study to  the  Lt . Governor, the 

Governor's Ch ief of  Staff a n d  the Governor's H ea lth  Po l icy Advisor. 

The Governor's Ch ief of Staff recommended that we convene a l a rger 

g roup  to d iscuss the find i ngs  and potentia l so lut ions  to the cha l lenges 

n oted in the study. 

O n  October 26, 2012 a n  O i l  I mpact meeting was he ld  i n  B i smarck with 

the  fol lowing in attendance :  Oi l  I ndustry rep resentatives, H ea lth Ca re 

rep resentatives, rep resentatives from a majority of the  d epartments 

withi n  State government  such  as  WSI, DHS, DO H, O M B  a n d  others .  



Although the stu dy conta i ned th ree recommendat ion s, the  major focus 

- wa s  on the low i nterest loan p rogra m. 

Fo r  most service oriented i nd ustries, the i ncrease i n  demand  has made 

a s ign ificant positive i mpact to the i r  bottom l i ne .  That is  n ot necessari ly 

t h e  case for the hea l thcare i ndustry. I n  fact it has  p roven to be j ust the 

opposite. A comb inat ion of  be ing u nder reimbursed by M ed ica re for 

nea rly twenty years, com bined with a sign ificant i nflux  of patients who 

do not necessa ri ly pay their b i l l s  t ime ly has  caused the fin anc ia l  

statements of the loca l hea l thca re fac i l ities to be less t h a n  des i rab le  for 

loca l  lend i ng i nstitut ions to p rovide loans at rates the  fac i l ities can 

effectively mange. 

The fac i l it ies a re having to spend whatever reserves they may have on  

i ncreased staffing costs, contract staff, hous ing and  i ncreased costs of 

s upp l ies and  materia ls .  

P rior  to the last Oi l  I mpact m eeting, N DHA con d u cted a s u rvey that 

i n d i cated there were e leven fac i l ities that had  ({sh ovel ready" projects 

tota l i ng $160--$200 m i l l io n .  

Therefore the  b i l l  before you was developed with s ignificant i nput from 

O M B  and  the  staff at the  bank  of North  Dakota .  The o rigin a l  daft had  a 

60-40 sp l it with a 20 yea r  payback. After receivi ng feedback from the 

i nterested fac i l it ies, they felt  the  sp l it was too h ig h  a n d  the  payback 

period too short .  Therefore, the origina l  d raft was amended to a 75-25 

sp l it with a 25 yea r payback. 

The net resu lt of th i s  is that  it has created an access iss ue .  Although the 

fac i l it ies h ave done  a very good job of expand ing the i r  serv ice hours to 

even i ngs a n d  week-ends, t hey s imply cannot keep u p  with the demand 



i n  the i r  current i nfrastructu res .  Thus their  patients a re u nwi l l ing to 

wa it severa l days or weeks to for a n  appointment a n d  go to the ER's  

because they know they h ave to be seen.  

Th i s  c reates two p rob lems, 1 )  It  takes up precious ER  t im e  for services 

that  do not necessari ly requ i re ER services, a nd 2) it costs a l l  of us more 

money to p rovide those services i n  ER.  

The refore in  order  to improve the access issues currently fac ing the 

fac i l it ies, they need to expan d  the i r  i nfrastructu re so th ey can provide 

m o re s pace for more p ractit ioners to see more patients .  

Therefore, I strong ly enco u rage you to support SB 2 187 with a DO PASS 

reco mmendation .  

Tha n k  you for you r  t ime a n d  I wou ld  be happy t o  a nswer a ny questions 

the  com mittee may h ave. 

Respectfu l ly; 

 
John Vastag  
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Introduction 

Across western North Dakota, an oil boom is in ful l  swing, prompted by horizontal d ri ll ing and hydrau l ic 
fracturing to extract oi l  resources trapped within the Bakken Formation. M ore than 200 oi l  rigs are 
currently at work in North Dakota. Oi l  output has more than doubled in two years a nd jumped five-fold  
s ince 2006. North Dakota recently surpassed Alaska as the nation's second-largest oi l  producer and  
a ccounts for about 10  percent of  U .S. crude production. The o i l  boom has been  good for North Dakota, 
creating an unprecedented budget surplus, low unemployment figures and significant wealth for the 
state at a time when many other states are struggl ing with budget deficits. 

The oi l  boom has also presented several chal lenges, including housing shortages, a n  explosion of heavy 
truck traffic and competition for human resources. It is also threatening to overwhelm the state's health 
care infrastructure which was not designed to accommodate such a rapid increase in  population .  

The  Health Policy Consortium ( HPC}, in  cooperation with health care providers across North Dakota, 
engaged H imle Rapp & Compa ny to conduct qual itative and quantitative research o n  the impact of the 
o i l  boom on  health care facilities and p roviders in  western North Dakota. The goal of the research is to 
capture the scope of the pro blem and d evelop valuable recommendations to present to policymakers 
and  others regarding the hea lth care issues facing North Dakota. 
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Executive Summary 

Technological advancements for oi l  extraction and the ensuing development of the Bakken Region is 
causing rapid population growth in many western North Dakota communities. Smal l  hospitals a n d  cl inics 
have traditional ly served the hea lth care needs of residents in these affected communities. Whi le  
providing h igh qua l ity hea lth care, two-thirds of  the smaller faci l ities located in rural areas of the state 
report operating losses in two of the last three years. U ntil the beginning of the oi l  boom, these facil ities 
were not poised for rapid expansion to accommodate an influx of new residents. 

Population growth over the last few years is straining the hea lth care system in western North Dakota. 
Absent a coordinated, comprehensive response to current and future challenges, continued population 
growth wil l  jeopardize existing a ccess to qua l ity hea lth care services in many communities. 

Staff Recruitment and Workforce Development 

Health care is a labor-intensive industry, meaning labor expenses typically far outweigh capita l  
expenses. H ospitals and clinics in the Bakken Region h ave redou bled their efforts at staff recruitment to 
meet the growing demand for patient care. Despite their best efforts, external obstacles such as lack of 
available or affo rd a ble  housing and daycare combined with hyper-competitive wages avai lab le in other 
industries a re l imiting hospitals' abi l ity to attract new staff. Retention of existing employees has become 
a growing chal lenge as the situation is placing unprecedented demands on the existing workforce. 

Capacity for Care Delivery 

The influx of new residents has resulted in a growing number of new patients seeking primary care 
services in cl inic settings. Existing capacity has not kept pace with the rate of population growth a nd 
clinics a re no longer able to satisfy skyrocketing patient demand. D ifficulty accessing clinical care in a 
timely fash ion is prompting patients to seek care in the emergency room for what would otherwise be a 
routine c heckup. Th is, combined with an increase i n  traffic accidents and other  trauma, is overwhelming 
emergency rooms that are simply not equipped to hand le the vo lume of patients they a re currently 
receiving. 

Financial Viability 

A multitude  of factors have negatively impacted the financial hea lth of many hospitals and cl inics, 
threatening their long-term viability. Facilities that have historical ly operated on sl im margins in rural 
communities are h aving difficulty accessing capital on the private market to fund necessary expansion 
and renovation of facilities. Bad debt levels have grown at a staggering rate as hospitals a re seeing more 
uninsured patients who a re either unwilling or unable to pay their bi l ls. F ina l ly, competition from a l l  
economic sectors i s  driving up costs for services and  workforce, placing additiona l  pressure o n  stressed 
budgets. 

Growing Public Health Concerns 

The oi l  boom and a ccompanying population growth has created new public hea lth concerns in western 
North Dakota that h ave exacerbated the strain on the existing health care infrastructure. For examp le, 
there has been a d ramatic increase i n  the incidence of sexua lly transmitted diseases, which is creating 
additional deman d  for primary care services. Further, rising numbers of traffic accidents a n d  incidences 
of violence resulting in trauma have caused an  unprecedented n umber of emergency room visits at 
affected faci lities. 
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To address the primary cha l lenges for health care de l ivery identified through this study, pol icymakers 
wi l l  n eed to consider innovative programs to improve access to capital for the hea lth care industry. 
Potential solutions include expanding the oil impact grant program and/or establishing a streamlined, 
low-or no-interest loan program for capital projects. Coordinating recommended solutions for the 
rema in ing cha llenges would best be accomplished through an  active task force invo lving hea lth care 
providers, pol icymakers, oi l  industry representatives and other business leaders. 

Himle Rapp & Company, Inc. - August 23, 2012 
Page S 



General  Observations 

1. The oil boom is good for North Dakota. 

Despite numerous chal lenges presented by the oil boom, hea lth care providers in North Dakota 
overwhelmingly agreed that the oi l  boom has had a positive impact o n  the state economy. 
• The oi l  boom has created many h igh-paying jobs, produced record-setting employment figures 

and  produced significant wealth for many land and business owners. 
• Tax revenues on  o i l  production have positioned North Dakota as one of few states with a 

significant budget surplus during a time when the rest of the country is suffering from h igh 
unemployment rates and budget deficits. 

2. Hospitals and clinics in western North Dakota are 

significantly strained by the demand from the 

growing population. 
• Qua l ity hea lth care is sti l l  being del ivered, but 

access to care is deteriorating and  facilities 
cannot sustain continued pressu re.  

• Patient demand  for services has dra matical ly 
increased over the past 24 months. 

• The incoming workforce is presenting unique 
and severe health issues. 

"It {the oil boom] has resulted in 

surplus funds, bringing attention and 

employment to North Dakota, long

term benefit. It's an enviable position. 
The issue is that it caught us off guard. 

The economy is great; the oil boom is 

wonderful - very positive. But rapid 

progress has a price. There are bad 

sides to it such as ER issues and bad 

debt for hospitals." 

- Dean Mattern, CEO 

3. Hospitals and clinics in North Dakota are not structured Garrison Memorial Hospital, Garrison 

to accommodate an i ncrease in demand this quickly. 

The biggest chal lenge for those impacted by the oil 
industry's rapid growth is to find resources a nd solutions required to keep pace with demand.  The 
o i l  boom has greatly accelerated the need for health care i nfrastructure and most rural hospitals 
have the need for immediate expansion of both infrastructure and capacity to provide care. 

4. Immediate and short-term challenges must be addressed to maintain high-quality health care. 

North Dakota hospita ls a nd cl inics a re facing numerous immediate and  short-term cha l lenges, 
including financial, housing and staffing crises. In addition, heath care providers are straining to 
provide primary, urgent and emergency care efficiently due to the growth in demand .  

5. Hospitals are balancing long-term planning against u ncertain future growth. 

Although sources predict the oi l  boom could continue for another 30 years, most hospital 
administrators a re uncertain of the future rate of growth in their a reas. P lanning for the 
contingencies that come with growth and contraction is critica l to the success of the hospitals and 
cl inics - and for the hea lth of  North Dakotans. 
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Geography of the Oil Boom 

There a re two primary categories of facilities that have been most affected by the oil boom. The first 
category includes facilities located within the Bakken Formation that a re d irectly impacted by the 
population growth and subsequent rise in demand for care services. Hospitals a nd cl inics located i n  
Wil liston, Watford City, Tioga, Stanley, Dickinson a nd Minot a re experiencing t h e  greatest impacts. Most 
facilities in  these service a reas are struggling to manage and care for the growing population. 

In some a reas, including the Tioga service a rea, the population has more than  tripled due to the influx of 
oil workers and "crew camps," which, in turn, h as caused the demand for health care to skyrocket. 
Williston has experienced s imilarly staggering popu lation growth, but is fortunate to h ave a $30 mil l ion 
expansion underway. Administrators in  Williston were able to secure n eeded capital and a lready had the 
infrastructure in  place to satisfy the growing demand. They a re a lso benefitting from oi l  industry 
assistance. 

A second group of facilities exist on the border of the Bakken Formation and a re experiencing a spillover 
effect. M any hospitals and cl inics on the fringe of the oil development a re currently m anaging demand, 
b ut are braced for a dramatic increase and see the need to problem-solve now. For example, Garrison 
and  Crosby a re experiencing some of the strain a nd tightness on housing, but not to the extent that 
Tioga and Watford City a re experiencing. Bottineau is targeted as the next a rea for d ri l l ing and is 
currently experiencing moderate impact a nd expects to experience a significant i ncrease in  demand for 
service in the very near future. 

NORTH DAKOTA 

Key: II Westem North Pal<ota �ospitals -- High Impact Area 

II H ospitals that are experiencing Spillover Effect 
II Eastern North Dakota Hospitals 

Bakken Formation  
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Recruitment a nd Workforce Development 

U nprecedented population growth in western 
North Dakota is generating unprecedented 
demands on the existing health care workforce. 
D espite aggressive and innovative approaches to 
recruit physicians and support staff, hospitals a nd 
cl inics a re unab le to recruit or retain  the staff 
necessary to meet increased patient demand. 
Several o bstacles are hampering existing 
recruitment efforts and this problem is 
perpetuating the strain on existing cl inica l capacity 
and  contributing to rising costs as outlined in later 
sections of th is report. 

"In Bismarck, we're seeing direct impact from 

the energy industry's rapid growth. In 

addition to increased demand for services, 

we're faced with growing staffing shortages. 

In 2007, we averaged about 80 openings at 

any given time. In 2012, we've had as many 

as 200 openings at one time. " 

- Dr. Craig Lambrecht, President and CEO 

Sanford Medical Center Bismarck, Bismarck 

Recruiting and  retaining qual ity physicians has traditional ly been a challenge for hospitals in rural 
communities. According to the American Hospita l Association, approximately 23 percent of t h e  
population in  t h e  Un ited States resides in  non metropolitan a reas, whi le on ly 13  percent o f  p hysici a ns 
practice in these same areas, resulting in a h ighly competitive recruiting environment. 

A m ajority of hospitals and clinics throughout N orth Dakota a re i nvesting more resources than ever to 
recruit and  retain m id- (primarily RNs) and entry-level staff (maintenance, CNAs, dietary, housekeeping) 
with little success. The cost of these practices include not only dol lars spent recruiting and retaining staff 
but a lso time a nd energy invested in tra in ing and  orienting new staff. 

Percentage I ncrease for Recruitment 

Spending by Hospital - 2007 vs. 2011 

 

" E I C B 
Western NO-High Impact Area 

N A  

Data collected for this report revea led that 
the i mpact on  recruitment costs is  not 
l imited to t he western ha lf of the state. 
Compared to 2007, the percentage change 
in recruitment expenses at h ospitals in  
western North Dakota ranged from (-92%) 

to 6 17%, compared with a range of 126% 
to 287% for their eastern counterparts. 
(One hospital reported a 40,000 percent 
increase in  recruiting costs between 2007 
and 2011. This figure is not included in  the  
side chart as  i t  i s  a n  outlier. )  While t h e  
trend in  recruiting costs is n ot un iformly 
consistent (two facilities red uced such 
expenses), the d ramatic increase i n  costs at 
a m ajority of the facilities demonstrates the  

significance of  this challenge. Survey respondents reported that the level of  competition for doctors, in  
particular, has increased dramatical ly. For  exam ple, one hospita l reported paying a $100,000 incentive 
for a s ingle p hysician to relocate to western North Dakota. 
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Hospitals and cl inics have a ltered recruiting and retention 
a ctivities by: 

• I ncreasing wages 
• Securing/offering housing (when available) 
• Advertising nationa l ly and internationa l ly, instead of 

loca l ly or regional ly 
• Using social media to reach prospective staff in new 

"We are trying to recruit aggressively 

to avoid hiring traveling staff, sign o n  

bonuses and wage increases. We h ave 

expanded our advertising to now 

include areas outside of the region. We 

also are using social media and a 

national list serve, but when we find 

someone who is interested, housing is 
ways an issue. " 

• Working with staffing agencies to help access new - Gary Miller, President & CEO 

e mployee pools, especially in areas of h igh S t.  Alexius Medical Center, Bismarck 

u nemployment a round the U .S. 
• Working with education programs in North D akota and other a reas to recruit newly-tra ined and  

homegrown professiona ls 
• Recruiting fam ily members of current employees, who a lready have a place to live, to circumvent 

the housing issue 
• Recruiting doctors thro ugh the National  Hea lth Service Corps, a U .S. Department of Human Services 

program committed to improving access to hea lth care in medical ly u nderserved regions 
• Offering numerous accommodations including: 

Sign-on bonuses 

Retention bonuses 

Flexible scheduling 

Generous benefit packages 

Relocation packages 

Student loan repayment assistance 

The l imited success of such exhaustive efforts is the likely result of severa l common o bstacles. 

Lack of Affordable Housing 

Respondents nearly unanimously voiced that the lack of affordable housing is the primary o bstacle for 
recruiting and retaining employees, 
and  the situation has worsened in 
the past 12 to 18 months. This 
conundrum exists for a l l  staff, 
including medical staff, nursing staff 
and  front-line, entry-level positions 
such as housekeeping, dietary and 
m aintenance workers. Prospective 
e m ployees either cannot afford to 
live in the oi l  impacted a reas or  
h ousing is  s imply not avai lable. 

Currently, there a re thousands of 
housing un its being bui lt in western 
N o rth Dakota apartments, 
townhouses and  single-fami ly 

 

 

Spending on H ousing for Staff 

by Hospital - 2007 vs. 2011 

Western N O  High Impact Area 
- ·  '2011 

• ;;zo01 

  E 
Western NO -High Impact Area 

8 A, G, H, I, J 

• 2011 
• 2007 

Eastern NO 

h omes. The construction phase wil l  be complete in most a reas in a pproximately 18 months, but th is is 
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"I'm in a position to take care of 
people, not in a position to be a 

landlord. But we are doing whatever 

we can to help out staff and the 

community with housing." 

- Reed Reyman, President and CEO 

St. Joseph's Hospital, Dickinson 

not soon e nough for the hospitals and  clinics in  
communities who n eed housing now. M a ny a lso note that 
when new housing is bui lt and ava i lab le, it is not 
affordable. 

Without avai lable housing now, hospitals and clinics a re 
not able to recruit or retain staff to meet the demand.  
There is  nearly unanimous agreement that the housing 
crisis is preventing hospitals and cl inics from hiring the 
staff necessary to support expanding operations to meet 
the demand for care. 

Many respondents report that once they successfully recruit an e mployee, they often cannot complete 
the h i re because the employee is unable to secure housing. 

Hospitals and  clinics have attempted to address the housing shortage with numerous short-term 
solutions, creating additional  financial burden for facilities. M a ny hospitals have taken a proactive 
approach and  a re buying and bui lding h ousing themselves. Others reported spending time fostering 
relationships with bui lding owners to reserve housing for incoming staff. Some hospitals h ave been able 
to purch ase a nd/or subsidize housing for staff, while others have converted existing h ospita l  structures 
into housing. Faci lities in larger communities, such as Wil liston, a re able to lease housing to secure it a nd 
sub-lease it to employees without absorbing additional expense. Others report that even though they 
have yet to purchase properties, the option is under consideration. These efforts a re costing hospitals 
and  cl inics significant time a nd money while providing little short-term rel ief. Many sma l ler facilities 
with fewer  resources h ave no existing options available to address the housing crisis. 

Hyper-Competitive Wages 

One of the largest financia l  burdens for 
hospita ls and clinics regarding workforce 
has been the need to increase wages. 
Over the past fou r  years, wages for 
nurses and  support staff at hospitals in 
western North Dakota have increased at 
a rate of 24 - 29 percent on  average, 
com pa red  to 10 - 12 percent for their 
eastern counterparts. Ba llooning wages 
have a direct impact on hospita l 
finances. Despite system-wide wage 
increases, health care remains at a 
significant  disadvantage a mong other 
e m ployers in  oil-producing com m unities. 

Percentage Increase in Nurse and Support 
Staff Wages by Hospital - 2007 vs. 2011 

  0 H L   

Even with increasing wages, employees most often report that they leave their positions in hea lth care 
for more money elsewhere or because they no longer have to work due to oil reven ue.  The biggest 
competitor for front-l ine staff comes from the oi l  industry and corol lary businesses that have o pened to 
cater to the oi l  industry (restaurants, hotels, convenience stores, etc.) M a ny administrators noted that 
they a re u nable to pay a competitive wage when compared to other employers because they a re l imited 
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by their inabi l ity to increase prices for hea lth services, while more conventiona l  businesses a re not 
constricted in this way. 

Availability and Affordability of Daycare 

The lack of affordable and a va ilable daycare is a nother issue for North D akota hospitals that is having a 
d irect impact on recruiting and retain ing staff. Because daycare services are not avai lable for staff, 
additional  employees are leaving their positions in health care, or decreasing their hours to care for their 
ch i ld/chi ldren.  In  many situations it  is  more cost-effective for the e mployee to stay at home to care for 
their children than to pay for a daycare provider. This situation often prevents prospective staff from 
relocating for employment i n  the oi l  impacted areas and is perpetuating the staffing shortage. 

Deteriorating Working Conditions 

Working Conditions are Worsen ing and a re Further 
I mpacting Staffing Challenges. 

"We are short-staffed every day. That causes 

stress and burn aut. " 

Staff burnout due to increased workload. 

The majority of respondents report that their staff 
m embers a re feeling the strain  of the population 
boom. Staff at all levels is being asked to do more 

- Dr. Scott Knutson, Assistant Medical Director, 

Emergency Trauma Center 

Trinity Health, Minot 

a n d  wear  more "hats" to address the demand for care, including admin istrative work and  tra i ning n ew 
employees. Adding to employee burnout are longer hours, increased caseloads and more responsibi l ity 
for staff across-the-board. 

Increased safety and security concerns. 

M any respondents mentioned the need for increased security measures in their facilities to protect 
patients a nd staff. Hospita l admin istrators have included increased security measures to accom modate 
concerns. Some administrators a re taking proactive steps by l imiting h ospital e ntrances after regular 
work hours, install ing security cameras throughout the facility a nd inviting police to have a presence in 

"Part-time staff is being asked to do more and they are 

b urned out. Morale is low. Staff wants more money. 

I've heard 'My son graduated from high school and 

makes more in the oil field than I do as an RN' from more 

than one employee. " 

the emergency room to address 
increased traffic in facilities. Ensuring 
staff a nd patient safety has requ ired 
considerable time, energy and  expense, 
adding significant stress to hospita l  
employees. 

- Shawn Smothers, Administrator The staffing crisis is impacting morale. 

Trinity Kenmare Community Hospital There a re substantial o rgan izationa l  costs 
associated with this situation. H igher 

turnover has greatly impacted the morale of entire hospital a nd cl inic staffs, and many organ izations 
reported m aking increased efforts to maintain positive work environments. Many a re attempting to 
boost mora le by giving "atta boys" to long-time staff and hosting e m ployee recognition events a nd 
gatherings. However, admin istrators a re quick to recognize that these gestures are simply not e nough to 
sustain employee mora le in the long-term. 

Himle Rapp & Company, Inc. - August 23, 2012 
Page 11 



Capacity for Care Delivery 

The del ivery of hea lth care services is bei ng impacted by the population explosion and m ost hospita ls  
and  c l inics do not have the cl inical capacity - or the emergency room capacity - to hand le the increased 
demand. Populations in  western North Dakota's hub health care communities - Wil l iston, Dickinson, 
Watford City and M inot - are projected to increase nearly 60 percent between now a nd 2020. 
Collectively, these fou r  communities a re estimated to have nearly 100,000 residents (crew cam ps 
included); city p lanners estimate that number will jump to 155,000 residents by 2020. 

Primary Care Clinics 

M a ny clinics in the o i l  impact a rea a re 
operating at or above ful l  capacity. 
From 2007 to 201 1, cl in ic visits in 
western North Dakota increased at an 
average rate of 13 percent, compared 
to less than 1 percent in the eastern 
h a lf of the state. While this increase is 
notably h igher for facil ities in the oi l  
i mpact a rea, this statistic is l ikely an 
incomplete measure of the actual  
demand for clinic services. Waiting 
periods for cl inic appointments in this 
a rea can be as long as three weeks 

Percentage Increase i n  Cl inic 

Visits by Hospital - 2007 vs. 201 1 

E M H B F D C N  A J 
Western NO- High Impact Area 

L P R 
Eastern NO 

·34% 
Q 

and many patients a re unable to visit the cl inic during normal business hours. Cl inics a re too short
staffed to offer extended hours, causing patients to turn to the emergency room as a n  avai lable 
a lternative - driving up costs for what would otherwise be routine physician visits. 

Hospitals a nd clinics a re streaml in ing workflow and clinic operations to become as efficient as possible. 
However, such efforts can on ly accomplish so much. Clinics wil l  need to invest capital  in expanded 
faci l ities and work to recruit additiona l  staff to ful ly meet the growing demand for services. 

Emergency Rooms 

A variety of factors a re combining to 
overwhelm hospital emergency 
rooms in western North Dakota, 
including h igher instan ces of trauma 
injuries a nd a growing trend  of 
patients seeking care for routine 
i l lnesses in  emergency rooms rather 
than in  a clinic setting. 

For example, Watford City has a one
room emergency department a nd 
one l ightly-equipped procedure 
room, yet is regu larly receiving 

Average Percentage Increase in Emergen cy 

Room Visits - 2007 vs. 2011 

57% 

Western NO-  1m ctArea EastemND 
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m u ltiple tra umas at the same time. Recently, th is hospital admitted 26 patients i n  one day, including 
two car accidents with a total of six seriously injured patients. The facil ity simply cannot sustai n  this kind 
of demand with existing infrastructure and staff. 

Emergency rooms are not only experiencing a n  overal l  increase in visits but are a lso experiencing a n  
increase in  t h e  severity o f  injuries proximately caused by the o i l  industry. I n  t h e  heart o f  t h e  o i l  impacted 
a reas, hospitals a re seeing more work-related traumas, including smashed hands and othe r  crushing
type injuries. Due to increases in traffic 
patterns throughout western North 
Dakota - largely attributed to the oil 
boom - a l l  hospitals reported seeing 
substantia l increases in the number of 
a utomobile accident injuries. These 
patients typica lly require e mergency 
roo m  attention and  injuries are more 
severe and much more frequent than 
prior to the boom. 

As mentioned above, patients not 
wanting to wait for a cl inic visit, are 
routinely over-uti l izing a nd misusing 
emergency rooms for non-emergency 
injuries and a i lments. Some of the 
m isuse is occurring because clinic 

Ave rage Percentage I ncrease i n  
Tra u m a s  - 2007 vs. 2011 

94% 

Western NO-High Impact Area Eastern NO 

appointments a re not ava ilable for weeks a nd patients do not want to wait for care. Some of the m isuse 
can be attributed to cl inic hours - and not being open after typical work hours when the patients can 
access them. Other instances of misuse occur because patients cannot pay for the services t hey need 
and wil l  go to e mergency rooms knowing they cannot be turned away due to federal regulations 
req uiring hospitals to administer emergency room care. This situation serves to exacerbate capacity a n d  
staffing issues and  adds to mounting financial problems for affected hospitals. 

"There's a population explosion in the Tioga region. The man [crew] camps in this service area are 

twice the size of the city. There are 2,500 people in the man camps and the population of Tioga is Jess 

than 2,000. There's a drastic increase in ER visits. In 2007, we had 600 visits. In 2012, we expect more 

than 2,000." 

- Randall Pederson, CEO 

Tioga Medical Center, Tioga 
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Financial Impacts of the Oil  Boom 

Insufficient Capital 

Th ere is an immediate need for infrastructure expansion, but hospitals a nd clinics cannot access the 
capital required to build and renovate. Hospital administrators most often cited infrastructure issues 
within  emergency rooms and clinics as the m ajor challenge caused by the o il boom. H owever, in the 
same context, many a dministrators also mentioned that their facility is aged and the n eed to bui ld new 
bui ld ings outweighs the benefits of renovating existing structures. 

Access to capital is the primary challenge to meeting patient demand. 

Rura l  h ospitals a nd cl inics consistently operate on razor-thin budgets with narrow marg ins, highlighted 
by two-thirds of critical-access facilities located in rura l North Dakota reporting losses in two of the last 
three yea rs, making capita l projects difficult to undertake. Further com plicating this problem, hospitals 
and  cl inics a re finding major issues in securing capita l from outside sources, which is required to 
undertake much-needed projects. This is impacting future planning. 

• M ost hospitals lack the abi l ity to self
finance .  Because the growth has been so 
rapid, hospitals and  clinics in  western 
North Dakota do not have extensive 
credit h istories to support large funding 
requests and cannot satisfy the stringent 
demands of financiers. 

• M a ny facilities, particularly in the more 
rura l a reas, a re aged. The condition of 
the h ospitals not o n ly puts patient care at 
risk but it a lso puts at risk the financial  
stabi l ity of the hospita l and jeopardizes 
bond ratings. Bond ratings have a d irect 
impa ct on the ability to secure capital .  

"We are trying t o  address the needs for our own 

little community as best as we can. It is getting 

tough. It would be great if we had something like 

a loan program to get capital for hospitals at a 

reasonable interest rate - a pool of funds that 

hospitals in North Dakota could draw from. We 

need capital funding for projects for infrastructure 

improvements." 

- Randall Pederson, CEO 

Tioga Medical Center, Tioga 

• For those still in the plann ing stage, financing problems are causing projects to sta l l  or preventing 
them from moving into action altogether. 

• Current funding mechanisms take too long. Numerous expansion projects a re i n  the process of 
being funded by USDA Rural Development funds, as it is one of the primary funding sources 
ava i lable to the hospitals in rural western North Dakota . This process was repeatedly described as 
lengthy and burdensome. Some hospitals report that the USDA process takes years to complete 
and  requires significant staff time to prepare the documentation requ i red by the appl ication .  

• Creative solutions a re l imited. One hospital is considering a community-wide capital  campaign. 
Some facilities a re trying to absorb costs interna l ly, whi le others a re seeking funding through their 
hospita l  fou ndations. 
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• One exception is the com munity of Wil l iston, which has been ab le to manage the demand in a much 
d ifferent way than sma l ler surrounding communities and has a $30 million expansion underway. 
Administrators were a ble to secure capital from a variety of funding sources, including significant o i l  
company investment, to  make their expansion possible. I n  addition, Williston was wel l�positioned, 
as they had existing infrastructure in  p lace to accom modate much of the growth. 

Bad Debt 

Levels of bad debt a re rapidly increasing 
across�the�board in western N orth Dakota 
at a staggering average rate of 138 percent 
over the last fou r  years. This 
unprecedented increase in bad debt is 
jeopardizing the financial  viability of many 
hospitals in western North Dakota a nd is 
n ot sustainable in the long�term. 

Several factors are contributing to this rise 
in bad debt. I ncreasingly, hospitals a re 
seeing uninsured patients who are e ither 
unable to pay or do not pay their bil ls. 
Furthermore, due to the transient nature 
of the incoming population, many new 
patients lack stable addresses and  
hospitals a re having difficulty locating 
current addresses to send bi l ls to patients, 
resulting in increased nonpayment and  
increases in bad debt. 

Hospitals have a l imited ab ility to raise 
fees for services provided because they 
are bound by the state's Medicaid 
reimbursement rate for services. To a ide 
revenue flow and a lleviate some of the 
bad debt, some administrators mentioned 

Percentage Increase in Bad Debt 

by Hosp ital - 2007 vs. 2011 

D E C F G M A H J I B  

Western NO-Hlsh Impact Area 

-16% 
Q L K R O P  

Eastern NO 

Percentage Increase in N umber of Uninsured 

Patients by Hospital - 2007 vs. 2011 

1373% 

  A   

the need to increase Medicaid reimbursement rates to bring more revenue  into the system to offset the 
r ise in bad debt. 

Rising Costs 

Population growth and rapid deve lo pment of North Dakota's oi l  fields have resulted in rising costs for 
hospitals and cl inics in a variety of ways. 

• Hospitals and clinics are paying high premiums for services in western North Dakota. 

Many administrators report that their costs a re unexpectedly increasing simply due to their 
geography. They report that bids for construction services a re a pproximately 30 percent h igher i n  
the o i l  impacted a reas t h a n  in  eastern North Dakota because of the h igh demand.  
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• 

• 

Workforce costs are significant • 
As previously mentioned, hospitals and c l inics are incurring significant expense to recruit a nd retain  
staff. Health care is  a labor-intensive industry and  stiff competition for both medica l and e ntry-level 
staff is driving up wage and salary expenses across the board. 

Temporary solutions to staffing needs are too expensive to sustain • 
Although contract staff is helping hospitals meet the increased demand for care, a l l  agree this 
solution is too expensive to sustain 
long-term. Almost a ll hospitals a re 
currently utilizing contract staff to 
som e  degree. In 2011, seven 
critical access hospitals in western 
North Dakota increased annua l  
expenses for temporary, contract 
and traveling staff by a combined 
tota l of $536,000, com pared to 
2007. These added expenses a re in 
addition to the enhanced 
recruitment efforts and salary 
increases cited a bove. 

Tempora ry, Contract, Traveling Staff 

Costs by H ospital - 2007 vs. 2011 

While temporary staff helps satisfy e H G s A 

the growing need for patient care • 2oo1 • 2011 

in the short-term, it is a less than 
ideal solution that is expensive and unsusta inable in the long-term. In addition to cost, several 
respondents indicated additiona l  issues with tempora ry staff, such as: 

• They a re often double the cost of a regular  ful l-time employee. 
• They a re often of subpar caliber. 
• They are not vested in patient care, the community or the success of the organization, l ike 

perm a ne nt employees. 

"Contract costs are up 300 to 400 percent. Contract staff has negative financial consequences. 
Contract workers also do not understand our mission and vision. They are not vested; not 

committed to the community or to the organization. They just want their paycheck. " 

- John Kutch, President and CEO 

Trinity Health, Minot 
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Public Health Concerns 

M ajor public health concerns are emerging and  the need for more preventive hea lth care is evident. This 
is particularly true in oil impacted comm u n ities where there has been a significant change in publ ic 
hea lth concerns, including a n  increase in sexua lly transmitted diseases, traffic a ccidents, d rug and 
a l cohol-related injuries, and increased incidents of  violence, including domestic a nd sexual  assaults. 
These digressions in public health have caused a direct impact on demand and  capacity for a rea 
hospitals and cl inics. 

Sexually transmitted diseases are on the rise. 

M a ny hospitals and cl inics in western North D akota have seen a n  increase in sexua lly tra nsmitted 
diseases. North Dakota Department of Health data shows a 24 percent increase in Chlamydia cases and 
a 14 percent increase in Gonorrhea cases in the most highly impacted counties in the western portion of 
the state. Many administrators see the increase as a direct result of the rise in prostitution caused by 
the boom. The increase in STD cases has a d irect impact on patient demand for cl inica l visits. 

Traffic accidents are on the rise. 

Another emerging public health concern is the d ramatic rise in traffic accidents caused by increased 
truck traffic related to the oi l  boom. The Rural  Transportation Safety and Security Center at North 
D akota State U niversity reports that traffic a ccidents increased 33 percent in the high impact a rea 
between 2007 and 2010. Research a lso indicates that the accidents a re increasingly involving oversize 
a n d  overweight trucks. The number of oversize a nd overweight trucks using roads in the oil impacted 
areas has more than doubled over the past three years, creating a dangerous situation o n  the roads. I n  
response t o  this growing concern, the North Dakota Department of Transportation, the North D akota 
Petroleum Council and the North Dakota H ighway Patrol are banding together to create a road safety 
campaign, Progresslone, to address this issue. 

I ncreasing traffic accidents and the severity of related injuries were a lso mentioned earl ier i n  this report 
when eva luating the increase in trauma cases in western N orth Dakota hospitals. As previously cited, the 
increase in traffic accidents and resulting i njuries a re h aving a direct impact on the ab ility to provide 
e mergency care to accident victims. 

Communities are experiencing increased incidents of violence. 

Communities in western North Dakota a re facing a significant increa se in incidents of violent crime 
including robberies, rape, assaults and thefts, due  in large part to the population explosion.  Pharmacy 
b urglaries a nd d rug and a lcohol-related crimes a re a lso reportedly on  the rise in the h igh impact a rea.  
Recent media articles a lso report widespread a nd increased incidents of prostitution. Violent cr ime in 
Wi lliston a lo ne tripled in 2010. In Dickinson, the average number of assaults from 2008 to 2010 was 
m o re than five times the average from 1999 through 2007. Fe lo ny cases in the Southwest Judicial  
D i strict, which includes the communities of Dickinson, Hettinger and Bowman, soared 85 percent from 
2006 to 2011. This increase in violent crime in the h igh impact a rea has a n  impact on hosp ital capacity to 
provide trauma care .  

Some hospitals a re taking a proactive approach to  dealing with the  increase of domestic a nd sexua l  
assau lts in their communities. I n  Minot, a new effort to  treat and address the increase in sexual assaults 
is u nderway. The community hospital helped establish the Sexua l  Assau lt Nurse Exam i ners (SANE)  
t ra ining program to treat and ta lk  with victim s  of  sexua l  assault. Programs such as SANE, whi le effective 
a n d  n ecessary to support victims of sexual  assault, stretch staff to take o n  increased responsibi l ities. 
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Conclusions 

1. The financial stability of many hospitals and clinics is at risk. 
• The financial h ealth of these organ izations is suffering because of the dramatic rise i n  bad debt, 

aged infrastructure, excessive costs associated with doing business and the lack of access to 
capita l for faci l ity improvements. Whi le these are not uncommon chal lenges for rural hea lth 
care providers across the country, the corresponding rise in demand for patient care e levates 
the situation in North Dakota to a genu ine crisis. 

• Financial instabil ity risks degradation of current bond ratings, which would mean  h igher 
borrowing rates - jeopardizing the a bi l ity to secure capital for m uch-needed expansion and 
improvement projects. 

2. Continued pressure on the hospitals and clinics will i mpact patient care if not 

a d d ressed. 
• 

• 

• 

• 

The inabi lity to expand or bui ld 
i nfrastructure necessary to meet 
demand will negatively impact 
patient care. 
P roviders a re being stretched 
beyond their l imits, as evidenced by 
the dramatic increase in traum as 
and emergency room visits, as wel l  
a s  t h e  difficulty in  recruiting more 
providers to the a rea. These 
cha l lenges are creating distortions 
that will impact patient care, both 
d irectly and indirectly. 

"Health care is the number one employer in the state of 

North Dakota and it is not earmarked to receive any 

funding from the Legacy Fund that is set aside from the 

oil impact. Will it take a casualty for the eyes to 

become wide open ? No hospital has closed. Will it 

take the threat of closure to increase the seriousness ?" 

- Jodi Atkinson, CEO 

St. Andrew's Health Center, Botttineau 

If not addressed soon, the factors contributing to financia l instabil ity may force h ospitals and 
c l inics to make d rastic decisions about services they offer to patients. 

The housing crisis, if not properly addressed, will leave hospitals without necessary staff to 
p rovide care to patients. 

3. Solutions need to be coordinated and comprehensive. 
• The current financial instability at hospitals and clinics in N orth Dakota n ecessitates 

comprehensive, system-wide solutions. 
• P roviders are attem pting to coo rdinate responses to these chal lenges, includ ing sharing 

i nformation about best practices to address existing challenges ( i .e .  collections practices to 
m itigate the increase in bad debt) and developing strategies to achieve greater o perational 
efficiencies ( i .e.  innovative ideas for recruiting and reta ining staff). 

• Hospitals and cl inics along with a broad coalition of partners, including patients, po licymakers, 
the oi l  industry and other business leaders, must work together to solve these cha ll enges. Each 
e ntity has a vested i nterest in  having a robust and healthy workforce to maintain the state 
economy and overa l l  h ea lth of North Dakotans. 
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Potential  Solutions 

Overcoming the challenges out lined a bove wi l l  requ ire consensus on solutions and a partnersh ip  
between patients, hea lth care providers, policymakers, oi l  industry leaders a nd other business leaders i n  
N o rth Dakota. The fol lowing proposed solutions merit consideration by  a l l  parties involved :  

1. Expand and restructure the Energy I nfrastructure a n d  Oil I mpact G ra nt 

Program to better meet growing needs. 
• Additional  funds could be appropriated for the Energy I nfrastructure and Oi l  I m pact Grant 

Program and dedicated to assisting hospitals and clinics in o i l  i mpacted regions. Currently, the 
funding ava i lable is inadequate to cover increasing needs of hea lth care providers. Hospita l 
administrators fu lly understand there is not e nough fund ing to address every need, but request 
that grant amounts be increased to satisfy more needs of the provider com m u nity. 

• Funding is currently unavai lable for hospitals and cl in ics u n less they partner with a 
governmental entity. E l iminating the partnersh ip  requirement would remove an u nnecessary 
burden for hea lth care facilities. Expand ing e ligibility for O i l  Impact Gra nts to a llow hospitals and  
cl inics to  become e l igible without a partner would improve access to  cap ita l to  better m eet the 
growing demand for  health care. 

• Funding associated with Oi l  I m pact Grants is currently only ava i lable for o ne-time expend itures. 
Hospitals and cl inics need he lp with one-time and reoccurring expenses to address issues of 
infrastructure, staffing a nd workforce. Expanding the grant program to include recurring 
expenses better serves the hea lth  care community a nd m a kes more expenditures e l igible for 
grant assistance. 

2. Encourage capital flow through state financed l ow- or no-interest loan 

progra ms. 
• The State of North Dakota could create a dedicated fund  with s ufficient resources to establ ish a 

low- or no-interest loan program to support existing health  care faci l ities' capital needs for both 
the short- and long-term. 

• City a nd county governments i n  western North Dakota a re restricted in their  abi l ity to issue debt 
or act as the issuer of debt due to existing bonds and debt loads. Establ ish ing a state low
interest loan fund would reduce burdens on health care providers a nd government entities to 
provide access to cap ital to meet s hort-term and long-term needs.  

• Many hospitals n eed access to funding in the short-term to cover i ncreases i n  operating 
expenses and manage this  trans ition period. Because the n eed is immediate, application 
processes for loans to address short-term needs should be quick and  not overly burdensome. 

• Some hospitals and  clinics need to expa nd or build new faci l ities to meet patient demand for 
health services a nd care for an i ncreasing population base. The state could facil itate responsible 
p lanning and expansion to meet patient needs by providing hospitals a nd c l inics access to long
term loans for capital projects at low interest rates. 
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3. Convene a Governor's task force to actively manage challenges and find 

solutions. 
• A task force focusing on health care in western North Dakota should be comm issioned and  

a p pointed by the  governor. Suggested task force members include: 
o Adm in istrators from hospitals a nd hea lth systems throughout North Dakota ; 
o Representatives from the oil industry, with a focus on developing partners hips with the 

hea lth care industry and rural communities; a nd 
o Representatives from other stakeholder organ izations including the long-term care 

industry, EMS professiona ls, e lected officia ls and business leaders. 

• The task force would assist the governor in setting parameters for low- or no-i nterest loan 
programs and the expansion/restructuring of Oi l  Impact G rants. 

• The task force would provide ongoing advice to the governor as hea lth care n eeds of the 
population in  western North Dakota continue to evolve. 
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Methodology 

The Health Policy Consortium engaged Himle Rapp & Company, Inc. to conduct research to assess the 
comprehensive impacts the oil boom is having on h ospitals and clinics in western North Dakota. The goal 
of th is research is to capture the scope of the problem and develop valuable recommendations to 
present to policymakers and others regarding the issues stakeholders a re facing. Successfu l completion 
of th is project would not have been possible without the participation and  assistance of the North 
Dakota Hospital Association (NDHA), many of NDHA's member hospitals and the North Dakota M ed ical 
Association. 

Research  

The research was conducted using two methodologies and n umerous outside resources: 

1. I n-Depth Phone Interviews 

Twenty-two interviews were conducted with opinion leaders in the health care industry and key 
stakeholders in western North Dakota. The interviews were conducted from June 11 - 29, 2012. The 
interviews addressed a number of issues facing area hospitals and clinics, including infrastructure 
and capacity strain, the cost of care, workforce, housing, and current and future solutions. 

I nterviewees included hospital administrators in western North Dakota and other stakeholders, 

including providers, emergency medica l services professiona ls and leaders from business a nd health 
care associations. 

2. Online Survey 

A wider, statewide group of hospital administrators completed an onl ine survey and  provided 
statistical data to further assess the impact. Although h ospitals in western North Dakota were the 
primary focus, hospitals and clinics in the eastern part of North Dakota were i ncluded to provide 
va luable comparison data. Data is compiled a nd reported by region and without s pecific attribution 
to hospitals in order to maintain confidential ity. 

3. Other Resources 

Other sources of information accessed during this research include: 
• First Biennial Report: Health Issues for the State of North Dakota, Un iversity of North Dakota 

School of M edicine & Health Sciences (2011}. 
• NDHA Oil Impact Survey, North Dakota Hospital Association (Apri l 2012). 
• The Impact of Oil and Energy Development on Out-of-Hospital Emergency Medical Services, 

SafeTouch Solutions, LLP (June 2011). 
• NO Petroleum Council Survey Results, North Dakota Petroleum Council (March 2012). 
• NO Health Care Emergency Preparedness Conference Presentation, Tom Nehring, D ivision of 

EMS & Trauma, North Dakota Department of Health (2012). 
• Trendwatch: The Opportunities and Challenges for Rural Hospitals in an Era of Health Reform, 

American H ospita l Association (April 2011). 
• North Dakota Critical Access Hospital Annual Financial Analysis, North Dakota H ospital 

Associatio n  a nd Darrold Bertsch, CEO, Sakakawea M edical Center (2009 - 2011). 
• NO Traffic Safety: Oil Counties, Rural Transportation Safety and Security Center, North Dakota 

State University (Summer 2011). 
• Sexual ly Transmitted Disease Data, North Dakota Department of Health, 

 (2007, 2011). 
• Recent media a rticles. 
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58 1-.r <6 1  � tt-�� J.- <{-(� *I Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 

Senator Grindberg 
January 30, 2013 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2187 

Page 2, line 26, remove "industrial commission is  for  with a certified 
 

Page 2, line 27, remove  firm to audit the" 

Page 2, line 27, replace "as  with "must be audited in accordance with section 
6-09-29" 

Page 3, line 1 ,  removed the underscore from  

Page 3, line 2, remove the underscore from "and costs of administration" 

Page 3, line 8, remove "Funds in the" 

Page 3, remove lines 9 through 1 2  

Page 3, line 13, overstrike "2." 

Page 4, replace lines 14 through 1 7  with :  

"7-:2. Funds in the medical facility infrastructure fund may be used for loans as 
provided under this section and to pay the costs of administration of the 
fund. Annually, the Bank may deduct a service fee for administering the 
medical facility infrastructure fund maintained under this section. 

&3. The medical facility infrastructure fund must be audited in accordance with 
section 6-09-29. The cost of the audit and any other actual costs incurred 
by the Bank on behalf of the fund must be paid from the fund. "  

Page 5 ,  line 1 ,  replace "Sections 1 and" with "Section" 

Page 5 ,  line 1 ,  remove the second "and" 

Page 5 ,  line 1 ,  replace "are" with "is" 

Page 5 ,  line 2, replace "are" with "is" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Kilzer 

February 1 3, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2 1 87 

Page 2, l ine 1 0, replace  with "three" 

Page 2, l ine 1 0, replace  with  

Page 4, l ine 20, replace "$1 50,000, 000" with "$1 2 ,000,000" 

Renu m ber accordingly 

Page No. 1 
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Title .  

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Mathern 

February 1 4, 201 3 

PROPO S E D  AMENDMENTS TO E N GROS S E D  S ENATE B I LL NO. 2 1 87 

Page 2, l ine 3 ,  remove "oil" 

Page 2,  l ine 4, replace  with  

Page 2, l ine 6, after "must" insert "limit loans to facilities  as critical access  
or medical clinics and" 

Page 2, line 6,  replace "oil  with  

Page 2,  l ine 7,  remove "and to  that are     that 
receive" 

Page 2, l ine 8,  remove "trauma  from oil  cou nties" 

Page 4, l ine 20, replace "$1 50,000 ,000" with "$75,000,000" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 











..,.__.- ": 
.f·: �._� ,/ ;.  �/.:·:tr:i ��; 

 COMMUNICATIONS 

REPUTATION 

CRISIS 

PUBLIC AFFAIRS 

& C O M P A N Y  

Project Contacts 

Todd Rapp, President • Allison O'Toole, Director 

Himle Rapp & Company, Inc. 

333 South Seventh Street, Suite 2400 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

toddrapp@himlerapp.com • a l l isonotoole@hlmlerapp.com 

Main 612.843.4500 
Fax 612.843.4555 

Hlmle Rapp & Company, Inc. - August 23, 2012 









To address the primary challenges for health care delivery Identified through this study, policymakers 
will need to consider innovative programs to improve access to capital for the health care industry. 
Potential solutions include expanding the oil impact grant program and/or establishing a streamlined, 
low-or no-interest loan program for capital projects. Coordinating recommended solutions for the 
remaining challenges would best be accomplished through an active task force involving health care 
providers, policymakers, oil industry representatives and other business leaders. 

Himie Rapp & Company, inc. - August 23, 2012 

Page S 





























Potential  Solutions 

Overcoming the challenges outlined a bove will require consensus on solutions and a partnership 
between patients, hea lth care providers, policymakers, o i l  industry leaders and other business leaders in 

North Dakota. The fol lowing proposed solutions merit consideration by a l l  parties involved: 

1. Expand and restructure the Energy I nfrastructure and Oil I mpact G ra nt 

Program to better meet growing needs. 
• Additional funds could be appropriated for the Energy I nfrastructure a nd Oil I mpact Grant 

Program and dedicated to assisting hospitals and clinics in oi l  i mpacted regions. Currently, the 

funding available is inadequate to cover increasing needs of health care providers. Hospita l 
administrators fu lly understand there is not enough funding to address every need, but request 

that grant amounts be increased to satisfy more needs of the provider commun ity. 

• Funding is currently unavailable for hospitals and clinics un less they partner with a 
governmental entity. Eliminating the partnership requirement would remove an u nnecessary 
burden for health care facilities. Expand ing el igibility for Oi l  I mpact Gra nts to a l low hospitals and 
clinics to become e ligible without a partner would improve access to capita l to better m eet the 
growing demand for health care. 

• Funding associated with Oil I mpact Grants is currently only avai lable for one-time expenditures. 

Hospitals and clinics need help with one-time and reoccurring expenses to address issues of 
infrastructure, staffing a nd workforce. Expanding the grant program to include recurring 
expenses better serves the health  care community and makes more expenditures el igible for 
grant assistance. 

2. Encourage capital flow through state financed l ow- or no-interest loan 

progra ms. 
• The State of North Dakota could create a dedicated fund with s ufficient resources to establish a 

low- or no-interest loan program to support existing health  care facilities' capital needs for both 
the short- and long-term. 

• City and county governments in western North Dakota a re restricted in their ab ility to issue debt 
or act as the issuer of debt due to existing bonds and debt loads. Estab lishing a state low
interest loan fund would reduce burdens on health care providers and government entities to 
provide access to capital to meet short-term and long-term needs. 

• Many hospitals need access to funding in the short-term to cover i ncreases in operating 
expenses and man age this transition period. Because the n eed is immediate, application 
processes for loans to address short-term needs should be q uick a nd not overly burdensome. 

• Some hospitals and clinics need to expand or build new facil ities to meet patient demand for 
health services and care for an increasing population base. The state could  facilitate responsib le 
planning and expansion to meet patient needs by providing hospitals and cl inics access to long
term loans for capital projects at low interest rates. 
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3. Convene a Governor's task force to actively manage challenges and find 

solutions. 
• A task force focusing on health care in western North Dakota should be comm issioned and 

appointed by the governor. Suggested task force members include: 

o Adm inistrators from hospitals and health systems throughout North Dakota ; 
o Representatives from the oil industry, with a focus on developing partners hips with the 

health care industry and rural communities; and 
o Representatives from other stakeholder organizations including the long-term care 

industry, EMS professiona ls, e lected officials and business leaders. 

• The task force would assist the governor in setting parameters for low- or no-interest loan 
programs and the expansion/restructuring of Oi l  Impact G rants. 

• The task force would provide ongoing advice to the governor as health care needs of the 
population in western North Dakota continue to evolve. 

Himle Rapp & Company, Inc. - August 23, 2012 
Page 20 







We are asking for you r  support to al locate funds that can be used in  a low 
interest loan program to help hospitals in  oi l  impacted counties to adjust to 
th is  g rowth and to continue to meet the needs brought about by th is change 
i n  North Dakota. 

Aga in  I am asking that you g ive SB 2 1 87 a do pass. 

Respectful ly, 

Je uren , President 
North Dakota Hospital Association 







recommendation  on SB 21 87, with an i ncrease i n  avai lable funds to a total 
$75 mi l l ion . 

Thank you for al lowing me  the opportun ity to share my testimony.  I wou ld 
be happy to answer any q uestions that you may have . 

Respectfu l ly ,  

Darrold Bertsch , CEO 
Sakakawea Medical Center, Hazen 
I nterim C EO ,  Coal Country Commun ity Health Center, Beu lah 

 
Cel l 70 1 -880- 1 440 







Proposed Amendments to Reengrossed Senate Bil No. 2187 

Page 2, Line 7 overstrike "and to  that are     that 

receive trauma  from oil  counties" 

Page 2, Line 1 0  replace "three million" with "fifteen million" 

Page 2, Line 1 0  replace   with   

Page 4, Line 2 1  replace "$12,000,000" with  
Page 4 Line 30 replace "201 7" with "2013"  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2 1 87 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 1 1 75 of the House 
Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2 1 87 is amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  line 4, replace "an" with "a contingent" 

Page 2 ,  line 7, remove "and to  that are     that 
receive" 

Page 2, line 8, remove "trauma  from oil  counties" 

Page 2, line 1 0, replace "three" with "fifteen" 

Page 2, line 1 0, replace  with  

Page 4 ,  line 1 9, after the first boldfaced period insert "CONTINGENT" 

Page 4, line 1 9, replace "There" with "If the board of university and school lands confirms that i t  
will authorize no more than $1 00,000,000 from the strategic investment and 
improvements fund to provide school construction projects under section 1 5. 1 -36-02, 
there" 

Page 4, line 2 1 , replace "$1 2, 000,000" with "$1 00,000,000" 

Page 4, line 28, replace "30" with "31 "  

Renumber accordingly 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE B I LL NO. 2 1 87 

Page 4,  l ine 7 ,  replace  with "medical  infrastructure" 

Page 4, l ine 8,  remove "investment and  

Page 4, l ine 1 2, after "section" insert  and transfer the  balance to the 
 i nvestment and  fund in the state  

Renumber according ly 














